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IN THE LABOUR COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA 

(HELD AT CAPE TOWN) 

CASE NUMBER    :               C88/2007 

DATE     :             4 NOVEMBER 2009   

In the matter between:  5 

DAVID ROBERT LEWIS                 Appl icant 

and 

MEDIA 24 LTD        Respondent 

 

COURT ASSEMBLES ON 4 NOVEMBER 2009 (at 14:18) 10 

MR LEWIS:  I 'm represent ing myself  personal ly.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  won' t  you speak into the microphone?  So 

that .. .  

MR LEWIS:  I 'm represent ing the appl icant in my personal 

capacity as the appl icant.  15 

COURT:  Thank you, Mr Lewis.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  May i t  p lease the Court ,  I  appear on behalf  

of  the respondent.  

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  maybe I  could just  assist  by 20 

deal ing with some housekeeping matters in re lat ion to 

documents and so on and so forth  before the app l icant 

proceeds with h is case.  In re lat ion to p leadings,  M'Lord,  we 

found that we could not  actual ly work with the pleadings f i le  as 

i t  had been put together by the appl icant,  so we have prepared25 
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a new f i le  of  pleadings with documents in consecut ive 

chronological  order and we would respectfu l ly submit that  i t  

would be better for a l l  part ies concerned  if  i t 's . . .   There 's no 

di f ference in the contents of  the documents.   I t 's  just  that  they 

have been ordered in the correct .. .  5 

COURT:  The chronological  order.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Chronological  order,  so therein one can 

fo l low the sequence of  the pleadings.  I f  I  may beg leave to.. .  

COURT:  Wel l  le t 's just ,  has Mr Lewis seen the new l ist?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No he has not,  M'Lord.  10 

COURT:  Shouldn't  he,  shouldn't  he loo k at  them and sat isfy 

h imself  that . . .?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  have no problem with that ,  M'Lord,  and 

maybe just  whi le –  I  should just  expla in that  the ru les of  court  

require the pleadings to be paginated in a chronological  15 

sequence and the manner in which you paginated the court  f i le 

was not in a chronological  sequence and we have therefore 

ordered i t  in  the correct  sequence and we have also added the 

pleadings that  have been f i led in the last  week.  I  don' t  –  Mr 

Lewis,  maybe I  can just ,  have you got a copy?  20 

COURT:  Let  me have a look at  a copy as wel l .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Alr ight .   M'Lord, we have divided i t  in to two 

sect ions, one with the pleadings proper and another which we 

have cal led “ Index to Addit ional Documents” as there are a 

number of  documents that  were i n the court  f i le  that fa l l  in to 25 
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le t 's cal l  i t  a grey category.   I f  I  can hand that  up as wel l .   So 

var ious let ters sent to the registrar and so on and so forth and 

we've referred to those as addit ional document,  Mr Lewis.  

COURT:  Now wi th these documents a l l  together,  they al l  

include al l  of  Mr Lewis 's documents?  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  Just  reordered? 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.  

COURT:  So in other words there 's nothing dif ferent  here other 

than the order and br ing i t  in to a chronological  sequence?  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord and obviously at  the t ime that 

Mr Lewis paginated the f i le  some of  the document were not yet 

in existence.  

COURT:  Had they not been f i led?  Yes.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No, so they would not  have been in h is  15 

index.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  do you have any di f f icul ty with th is?  

MR LEWIS:  H'm, i t  doesn' t  appear –  i t  doesn' t  appear so.  

COURT:  You must approach the mic before you speak.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.   I t . . . ,  i t  doesn' t  –  there doesn' t  appear to 20 

be a problem.  I 'm just  a b i t  concerned.  There was an earl ier 

at tempt to change the order of  proceedings with regard to the 

pre-tr ia l  minute and the cert i f icate of  outcome.  So I 'm just  a 

b i t  concerned that the respondent is at tempt ing to go back –  

backwards to the CCMA, overturn the cert i f icate of  outcome. 25 
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COURT:  I  don' t  th ink you need to  worry about that .   This is –  

a l l  that 's happened here is that  a l l  the documents that you had 

in your f i le ,  in your,  sorry,  your indexed pleadings I 'm advised 

are included in these too.   I f  at  any stage something is mis sing 

or is not  correct you would be quite ent i t led to ra ise i t .   But 5 

real ly,  what Mr Kahanovitz says is  real ly a l l  that  is done is 

these documents have now been put in the order that  they 

should have been put in terms of  the ru les and al l  the 

documents are  here.   To the extent  that any document is 

missing and you come to real ise that. . .  10 

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 

COURT:  Then you can ra ise i t  wi th me.  

MR LEWIS:  Thank you very much.     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  then we would beg leave to hand 

up the respondent 's bundle which, as I  indicated to Your 15 

Lordship,  hopeful ly a l l  of  these documents wi l l  be put  into 

lever arch f i les for Your Lordship too in the tea break.   M'Lord, 

there are. . .  

COURT:  And Mr Lewis,  I  see you've got a copy?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  He was given before.   Yes he does have a 20 

copy.   There are four,  is i t  four or three?  There are three 

subpoenas that  have been issued by –  issued out of  the 

registrar 's of f ice by the appl icant ,  by the appl icant in respect 

of  –  one is in respect of  Shelagh Goodwin,  another in respect 

of  Hanl ie Gouws and the th ird is  Br ian,  Br ian Gaffney.   Now 25 
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M'Lord,  might I  ask. . .?  I  need to address you in due course on 

the val id i ty of  those subpoenas.  We undertake, should Your 

Lordship f ind that the subpoenas are val id and that  these 

witnesses need to be in attendance at  court ,  we undertake to, 

on Your Lordship so request ing,  to ensure that  they are 5 

brought here posthaste.   But on the face of  the documentat ion 

they are required to be here for the next  three days and we 

would ask that  they be provis ional ly excused unt i l  such stage 

as both of  the part ies have had an opportuni ty to address Your 

Lordship on the quest ion of  the re levance or otherwise of  any 10 

evidence which they may give in these proceedings.  

COURT:  Just  let  me know who they are.  I  –  In. . .    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  don' t  –  i f  they're in your. . .   The 

subpoenas are . . . ( intervent ion)  

COURT:  I  only got  one subpoena here and that  was in re lat ion 15 

to Shir ley(sic) Goodwin.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes and Your Lordship a lso should have 

. . . ( intervent ion)  

COURT:  And she's the HR manager. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes and Your Lordship should also then 20 

have an af f idavi t  in  Your Lordship 's f i le  in which we deal with 

that  subpoena.    

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  We didn' t  actually get  copies of  the other 

subpoenas except –  because as Your Lordship is aware the 25 
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process is not  one which is  done via us or through the 

at torneys.  

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  We only –  we heard about i t  f rom our staf f .   

So h 'm...  5 

COURT:  Are these, are al l  these three  people f rom the 

respondent? 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  they're a l l  f rom the respondent and 

what we advised them to do.. .  

COURT:  And you give an undertaking.  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  . . .was to be here today as they are.  

COURT:  Alr ight .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  To comply and that  we would then address 

the Court  on their  behalf .   So I  have, I  don' t  have a copy but I  

have the or iginal  of  –  as served on Hanl ie Gouws of  Media 24 15 

and Mr Gaffney does.. .   We don' t  have his subpoena but we 

know he has been subpoenaed.  

COURT:  Okay.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  don' t  know in what f i le .   We're assuming 

they are in a f i le  at  the Labour Court.  20 

COURT :   Yes,  that ’s f ine.   Mr Lewis ,  do you have any 

object ion?  They wi l l  be made avai lable  at  any t ime. 

MR LEWIS:  As the Court  p leases.  

COURT:  I f  you're happy with that .     

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  25 
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COURT:  Then I  th ink rather than keeping them here for three 

days,  let 's determine the val id i ty of  the subpoenas . 

MR LEWIS:  H'm.. .   

COURT:  And i t  may be that that ,  the evidence becomes 

relevant in which case the other s ide have given an 5 

undertaking to cal l  them at  short  not ice.   

MR LEWIS:  As the Court  p leases.  I  have no object ions to 

that , thanks.  

COURT:  Okay, then Mr Kahanovitz,  then the three 

witnesses.. .  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Where are they?   I  th ink they need to come 

into court ,  M'Lord.  

COURT:  Yes of  course.   I  wanted to cal l  them.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ja. 

COURT:  In the meant ime I  want to just  p lace on record the 15 

issued that  I  ra ised in chambers.   I  ra ised with both the,  with 

the appl icat ion and the respondent that  the law f i rm with which 

I 'm associated has –  was approached by the appl icant on one 

occasion and on a matter d istant ly re lated to th is appl icat ion 

and that  other members of  my law f i rm had given advice on 20 

one or two occasions to the respondent.   I  personal ly have not 

been involved in any of  these matters .   I  ra ised th is issue with 

both the representat ives of  the respondent and the appl icant 

and they had no object ion to me cont inuing to hear the matter.  

Just  wish to p lace that  on record.  Are the three witnesses 25 
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subpoenaed in court ,  Mr Kahanovitz? 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  yes.   Maybe M'Lord,  just  to get  i t  on 

record we should just . . .   Maybe each of  you could just  te l l  us 

what your names are.  

MS GOODWIN:  I 'm Shelagh Goodwin.  5 

MS GOUWS:  Hanlie Gouws.  

MR GAFFNEY:  Br ian Gaffney.  

COURT:  You've been subpoenaed to be in th is court  and to be 

here for three days.   The representat ive of  the –  legal 

representat ive of  the respondent has requested that you be 10 

provis ional ly excused f rom being in court  for these three days.  

The appl icant has agreed.  But i t 's  on th is basis, that  Mr 

Kahanovitz has undertaken that  you wi l l  make yoursel f  

avai lable at  short  not ice should the Court  require i t ,  together 

with the documents that you've been asked to br ing.    15 

MS GOODWIN:  Thank you. 

COURT:  Thank you, you're excused.  

MS GOODWIN:  Thank you very much.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M'Lord.   Then just  to cont inue 

then with housekeeping matters.   The part ies were unable to 20 

conclude a pre-tr ia l  process by themselves .   Pre-tr ia l 

conference was then convened in f ront  of  Judge Mos hoana AJ 

(M-o-s-h-o-a-n-a).   That,  the minute. . .   Wel l ,  le t 's put  i t  th is 

way, the document that  purports to be the pre -tr ia l  minute of  

that  process is at  pages 45 through to 54.   Your Lordship wi l l  25 
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note that  i t 's  not s igned and the reason for that appears f rom 

the document which is at page 55 of  the pleading,  which is 

cal led a dissensus (d - i -s-s-e-n-s-u-s) and Your Lordship wi l l  

note that  in that the appl icant records his “d issensus and 

dissat isfact ion with the manner in which the pre -tr ia l  minute 5 

have been recorded and/or fa i lure to amend the said 

document”.   Your Lordship wi l l ,  however,  note that  Mr Lewis 's  

object ions to the content of  the minute are l imited in nature.   

So when he took the. . .   What he has done is that  in ef fect  he 

says i f  the changes that  are ref lected on page 56 are 10 

incorporated, then he's happy with the pre -tr ia l  minute.   What I  

would suggest as a pract ical  way forward,  M'Lord,  is the 

fo l lowing, that  i t  st r ikes me that  i t 's  point less for the part ies to 

debate whether the name of  A Cassim(?) as the minute -taker 

should or shouldn' t  be in the minute.   I t 's  point less for the 15 

part ies to debate whether the wording that  Mr Lewis has of  

5.7.3.11 is a more accurate ref lect ion of  what was said than 

the way in which my instruct ing at torney recorded i t  and i t 's  

a lso point less to have a discussion about whether what should 

be the new paragraph 14.3 should be included because 20 

nothing is actual ly going to turn in the end result  on any of  

these issues.  So I  th ink i t  would just  waste t ime for there to 

be a debate on who was r ight  or who was wrong in the way in 

which the pre-tr ial  minute has been ref lected.   What we do 

know and I  th ink that 's suf f ic ient  for t r ia l  purposes, is that 25 
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besides those paragraphs noted in the dissensus the rest  of  

the pre-tr ia l  minute is,  i t  is  agreed the rest  of  the pre -tr ia l  

minute is a proper ref lect ion of  the pre -tr ia l  process and what 

is therein contained suf f ic ient ly compl ies with the ru les of  th is 

court .   So my submission is that  subject  to what Mr Lewis has 5 

to say,  that  we don' t  debate th is issue any further and we just  

proceed on the basis of  the documents as they are now before 

the Court .  

COURT:  Thank you.  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  I  just  want to record the problem with the in  l imine  10 

point  which was ra ised with regard to the c ert i f icate of  

outcome.   The respondent objected to the cert i f icate of  

outcome at  pre-tr ia l  and the mot ion was denied,  that  that 

wasn' t  recorded in the minutes.   The minutes were not s igned 

for the reason that  the respondent prof fered a f raudulent 15 

contract ,  a contract  c la iming to have been signed by my good 

sel f .   I  have not seen that  document.   The document which 

bears my signature has a signature on the –  on the back page 

of  the document.   The document hasn' t  been –  none of  the 

pages have been signed.  So just in view of  the f raudulent 20 

document and the fa i lure to amend the pre -tr ia l  minute and 

also in view of  the fact  that  I 'm not represented, I  don' t  have 

access to an at torney I  have not s igned that  document.   I  am 

prepared to s ign such a document i f  the a mendments are 

included in that  document.   Thank you.  25 
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COURT:  Just  to help you.  Real ly what a minute is,  i t  just 

records that  what is agreed and that what is not  agreed.  So I 

would l ike to suggest that  what we do is we take the minute as 

i t  stands, you don't  have to s ign i t ,  that  we record your views 

of  that  part icular standpoint.   So if  we take one on at tendance  5 

we just  record that  A Cassim is the minute -taker;   that  in 

regard to the mater ia l  facts which are in d ispute,  5.7.3.11,  that 

th is is your version  of  what took place and that  the current 

5.7.3.11 is the respondent ' s version and that  we do the same 

th ing with 14.3.   In other words al l  that  the minute now ref lects 10 

is everyth ing as agreed, subject  to these three amendments.  

The respondent is not  agree ing to your changes and you're not 

agreeing to their  version and that  then is s imply recorded.  Is 

that  in order,  Mr Kahanovitz?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.  15 

COURT:  Are you happy with that , Mr Lewis?   

MR LEWIS:  Yes I  am, thank you very much.  

COURT:  So for the purposes of  the minute we wi l l  read in the 

changes that  the appl icant wanted to have in the minute and 

i t 's  recorded that those changes are the appl icant 's standpoint 20 

in respect of  those issues and that  the current  paragraphs as 

they are contained in  that  minute , 5.7.3.11 to –  and 14.3 

ref lect  the respondent ' s version of  what has taken place.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  As the Court  p leases.   M'Lord,  just  to p lace 

on record,  insofar as i t  may be re levant,  that  my instruct ions 25 
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are that  there was no chal lenge to the cert i f icate of  outcome 

as part  of  the pre -tr ia l  conference process and i t  would not 

have been legal ly competent for any such chal lenge to have 

taken place.  So i t 's  just ,  I  mean I  must just  put  that  on record 

because i t 's  been said that . . . ,  i t 's  been recorded that 5 

respondent ra ised the point in  l imine  and that  the mot ion was 

denied.   We note that  that  is what is said.   We have a di f ferent 

view.  We say that d idn' t  happen.  So let 's –  and we just  leave 

i t  at  that .  

COURT:  Yes.  I  th ink that 's. . .   Ja,  yes.   That 's a d ispute that 10 

we wi l l  resolve in the course of  evidence.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.  

COURT:  I f  i t  remain –  i f  i t 's  an issue.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I f  i t  remains a dispute,  a lr ight .   Then 

M'Lord,  Your Lordship wi l l  have seen that  we have f i led a 15 

not ice of  intent ion to amend which is at  pages 57 through to 

75.   There seems to be some form of  an object ion and maybe I 

must just  expla in the purpose of  the amendment and why the 

not ice has been f i led and why I  don' t  th ink that  the problems 

that  the respondent  –  that  the applicant envisages with that 20 

not ice are real  problems.  M'Lord,  I  was not previously 

involved in th is matter and in –  I  was not involved in the 

process of  p leading the statement of  defence, but  on gett ing 

instruct ions and on reading the pleadi ngs I  thought i t  important 

to at tempt to d ist i l  f rom the,  let 's cal l  i t  the wider set  of  c la ims, 25 



 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

13 DISCUSSION 

 

04.11.2009/14:03-16:07/EdB  /…  

which of  those al legat ions appear to be the main tenets or 

threads of  the appl icant 's case.   His statement of  c la im, 

a l though i t  was draf ted by an at torney is  not ,  wi th respect,  a 

model of  c lar i ty.   So on looking at  the documentat ion that  had 

been discovered  and also then in looking at  what is in pages 5 

21,  th is is the pleadings f i le ,  and fo l lowing which is a response 

draf ted by the appl icant h imself  in relat ion to an exception that 

was threatened whenever proceeded with ,  i t  became apparent 

to me that  the –  some at tempt should be made to d ist i l  what,  at 

least  according to our understanding,  are  the cla ims that  are 10 

being made by the appl icant.  What we did was we looked at 

how he had art iculated his c la im in the f i rst  instance when he 

had referred i t  as a d ispute and what were the central  p i l lars 

or h is centra l  gr ievances and we in essence have said that ,  in 

our not ice of  amendment,  th is is what we th ink are his cau ses 15 

of  act ion and if  h is causes of  act ion are indeed what we th ink 

they are,  then th is is our version.   Because i t  was.. . ,  i t  was not 

a very construct ive process to merely put  before the Court  a 

set of  documents that  say,  “We deny and put you to the proof ” ,  

which is what the essence of  the or iginal  statement of  20 

response was.  So Your Lordship wi l l  not ice that  the 

amendment that  the amendment does not seek to amend 

anything contained in the or iginal  statement of  response.  Al l  i t  

does is seek to ampl ify what  is contained in the or iginal  

statement of  defence and with respect,  there is no prejudice to 25 
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the appl icant which can result  f rom th is.   I f  anything ,  i t  would 

put  the appl icant in a far bet ter posi t ion to now being aware of  

the case that  the respondent intends putt ing up in response to 

h is c la ims.  There is no endeavour on our part ,  as appears to 

be suggested, that in somehow or other we are not  attempt ing 5 

to revis i t  or reopen the quest ion of  what is contained in the 

cert i f icate of  outcome.   First ly we don' t  do that  and secondly i t  

would not  be open to us to do so,  even if  we had wanted to do 

so.   So I  don' t  th ink that  the appl icant needs to perceive that 

there is some or other threat  f rom our s ide that  through th is 10 

amendment we are seeking to undermine or u ndercut  the 

conci l ia t ion process.   Those are my submissions,  M'Lord, 

unless you have any quest ions.  

COURT:  Wel l  le t  me hear Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Your Honour(sic) ,  wi th  –  for the purposes of  the 15 

cla im which is before the Court ,  which is contained in my f i l ing 

sheet,  there are two grounds essent ia l ly that  are contained.  

The one is a re l igious bel ief  and the other one is pol i t ical 

out look.   The nature of  the complaint which was put before the 

CCMA contained f ive basic sort  of  issues.  One of  those issues 20 

is the re l igious issue and the other issues have been 

subsumed under the f i l ing sheet in the form of  the pol i t ical 

out look and then also the secondary issue of  harassment.   So 

they're only real ly three of  the,  what one could term the in i t ia l  

complaint ,  the grounds of  that complaint  we've contained.  I 've 25 
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now responded to the –  th is amendment.   I 've no object ion to 

the manner in which  the amendment has been adopted, just  

that  I  have been now been given an opportuni ty to address the 

in i t ia l  grounds and that  the. . . ,  just  for sake of  c lar i ty,  the –  I 've 

been forced to essent ia l ly address the structure of  the in i t ia l 5 

case at  the CCMA.  So there is a problem of  order with regards 

to the –  my response to the amendment.  

COURT:  Let me just  be clear.   One moment you say  you don't  

oppose the amendment.   You don' t  oppose the amendment?  

MR LEWIS:  No. 10 

COURT:  But you.. . ,  but  what you do oppose is the content of  

the amendment in the sense of  the –  there 's a real 

d isagreement between you as to what the respondent is 

saying,  which is of  course the nub of  the case that  we're  

deal ing with.   15 

MR LEWIS:  Right  and I  would also oppose the form or the 

structure of  the amendment because i t 's  –  the respondent is 

at tempt ing to address the in i t ia l  f i l ing sheet which was at  the 

CCMA. 

COURT:  But. . .   20 

MR LEWIS:  I 'm forced to go with the f i l ing sheet which is  

before the Court .  

COURT:  Okay.   

MR LEWIS:  So the structure of  that  f i l ing –  the structure of  

the f i l ing sheet before the Court  should be the one that  is 25 
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addressed.  The documents that  are at  the CCMA would fa l l  

under the f i l ing sheet before the Court .   I 'm just  a b it  

concerned that  the respondent is essent ia l ly undermining my 

appl icat ion before the Court  on the grounds.  

COURT:  I . . .   You see, I  don' t  understand.   I  don' t  understand.  5 

What they're seeking to do and I 've read the papers,  is real ly 

to ampl ify what might be cal led a very. . . ,  a bare denial  in the 

response.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  They just deny by and large.  They do set out  certa in 10 

facts et  cetera.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  What they've done now is ampl i fy those facts.   They 

have to prove them. 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  15 

COURT:  Just  as you have to prove your case.   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Wel l th is is just paper at  the moment.   We are going 

to have to have oral  evidence.  

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 20 

COURT:  So my sense is that  to the extent  that  you are 

concerned about the structure of  i t ,  that  can be addressed 

later.   You don' t  have object ion to the amendments, so I  just 

need to record the fact  that you have concerns about the 

structure and you can address that  in evidence as we go 25 
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a long.  You're not  in any sense being required to concede that .  

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  

COURT:  I  don't  qui te understand what you mean but maybe it  

wi l l  become clearer when you give evidence.   

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  5 

COURT:  So are you happy then for me to grant the appl icat ion 

to amend the response?   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Subject  to your concerns  that  you may ra ise at  any 

point  regarding the structure and what matters were brought 10 

. . . ( intervent ion)    

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  I 'm request ing the Court  to preserve the 

order of  the documents with regard to the in i t ia l  f i l ing sheet.  

COURT:  Now.. .   

MR LEWIS:  I 've got  a problem with the at tempt to undermine 15 

the f i l ing sheet,  essent ia l ly. . .  ja .  

COURT:  Alr ight ,  you must te l l  me what f i l ing sheet you're 

ta lk ing about.   

MR LEWIS:  The f i l ing sheet before the. . .  

COURT:  Wel l . . .  20 

MR LEWIS:  I t  should be:   Appl icant 's statement of  case.   So 

I 've got  a problem i f  “Appl icant 's statement of  case ”  is  no 

longer the f i rst document before the Cour t .  

COURT :   “Appl icant 's statement of  case” is the f i rst  document 

before me.   25 
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MR LEWIS:  Right , so I 'm just  –  just try ing to preserve that .  

COURT:  And the f i l ing sheet:   

“Appl icant serves and f i les herewi th h is statement of  

c la im in the above matter. ”   

And that 's page 1.   Have you got i t  in  f ront of  you?  I t  wi l l  be 5 

much easier i f  we work of f  the same document.   No please 

stand here.  

MR LEWIS:  I 'm sorry.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you must. . .   Alr ight ,  do you have page 1?      

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 10 

COURT:  And then page 2  is the address and page 3 is the 

statement of  case and then there 's a schedule of  documents 

on pages 6 and 7.   

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight ,  I  have no object ion to that .  

COURT:  Okay.  Well  of  course they're your papers ,  I 'd  hope 15 

so.   Alr ight  then what is your concern then in re lat ion to the 

amendment?  So the structure is now being kept, is that 

correct?   

MR LEWIS:  H'm, i t 's  just  a quest ion of  preserving the 

cert i f icate of  outcome and the. . . ,  ja .  20 

COURT:  Yes.  The cert i f icate of  outcome is stated here at 

10.1  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And then an art ic le with a spel l ing mistake as to 

the. .. ,  as to J immy Dludlu but nevertheless and the art ic le.   So 25 
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that  structure is reta ined in the documentat ion.    

MR LEWIS:  Thank you very much.   Right .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  might I  be of  assistance here?  I  

th ink I  understand maybe what the problem is.   I f  Your 

Lordship has a look at  respondent 's bundle at page 55.  5 

COURT:  That 's the. . . ,  now is that the index pleadings or the 

bundle? 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No th is,  sorry,  the bundle,  the witness 

bundle.  

COURT:  The bundle,  okay.   55.  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Wel l  you' l l  see th is is the referra l  of  the 

dispute.  

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  And annexed to the referra l  is the 

appl icant 's summary of  the nature of  the dispute.  15 

COURT:  Of the f ive issues. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  The f ive issues.  Those are the issues that 

we then refer to in the amendment.   I  th ink what the appl icant 

is saying when he ta lks about a f i l ing sheet,  th is was the way 

in which he'd f ramed his d ispute at  that  stage.  20 

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  th ink he is saying that he has f ramed his 

d ispute dif ferent ly for purposes of  the Labour Court  

proceedings.   I 'm not. . . ,  in other words I 'm not sure what the 

di f ference is between the two, but  I  th ink what the appl icant is 25 
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saying is that  some of  these disputes are not ones which he is 

st i l l  pursuing in th is court  and if  that  is correct , then he's 

saying we're barking up the wrong tree if  we assume that  a l l  of  

these issues are st i l l  part  of  h is case.  I  don' t . . .  

COURT:  Mr Lewis.  5 

MR LEWIS:  H'm... ,  sorry,  the respondent is part ia l ly correct .  

The issue isn ' t  the contents.   The issue is the grounds, the 

heads of  argument.   So the –  some of  those grounds have 

been subsumed under a wider,  more broader term.  I t 's  just  a 

quest ion of  terms.  10 

COURT:  Okay.  So look.. .    

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  You know, I  th ink i t 's  very awkward for you to s i t  at 

the back there.  I  th ink you should s i t  up f ront .   

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  15 

COURT:  And you should have al l  your documents on the 

table.   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Otherwise i t 's  just  real ly. . .   What Mr Kahanovitz has 

done as indicated in. . .  20 

MR LEWIS:  Sorry? 

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz has indicated in h is bundle of  

documents,  sorry the respondent 's bundle of  documents.   Have 

you got the respondent 's bundle of  documents  in f ront of  you?  

I t 's  cal led:  Index to Respondent 's Bundle of  Documents.   25 
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MR LEWIS:  No.  Index to respondent 's. . .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t  looks l ike th is.    

MR LEWIS:  H'm,  I  don' t  have i t .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  There you do.   

MR LEWIS:  Oh th is bundle?  5 

COURT:  W il l  you look at  page 52?  Have you got page 52?  

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 

COURT:  So that 's the part  A of  the CCMA referra l .    

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And then you've got 53,  54 and then 55 and 56 are 10 

the f ive points that  you ra ised earl ier in your d iscussion.   S o 

these are preserved subject to the changes you've made 

during the course of  th is appl icat ion and as I  understand i t  

you're saying that  some of  these are now subsumed under the 

broader categories?  15 

MR LEWIS:  Right  yes,  yes.  

COURT:  Okay and am I r ight  in saying,  Mr Kahanovitz,  that 

nothing that  you have done in your appl icat ion to amend in any 

way af fects that?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  H'm, I 'm not sure what ef fects what 20 

because I 'm not sure I  understand what 's going on.  So I can't  

real ly. . .  

COURT:  The point  is that ,  as I  understand i t ,  is  that  he had 

f ive issues.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  25 
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COURT:  He's proceeded with three, but  that  doesn' t  mean 

that the other two aren' t  subsumed with in the f ive and to the 

extent  that . . .    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  To the extent  the re 's a structure there.   I  certa in ly 5 

don' t  see your amendments having that  ef fect ,  so. . .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No, I  mean maybe once again we can just,  

we can note what has been said and I 'm not sure what is 

subsumed under what other heading.  

COURT:  What,  yes of  course.   10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  But I  don' t  th ink there 's any point  again in 

d iscussing that .   There 's no intent ion on our part to in any way 

af fect  the way in which the appl icant has f ramed his c la im at 

any stage. 

COURT:  Right ,  thanks Mr Kahanovitz.   So then the appl icat ion 15 

for amendment is granted , subject  to the concern ra ised by the 

appl icat ion that  the. . . ,  what he does not concede is the 

undermining of  the structure of  the dispute referred to the 

CCMA and subject to that  reservat ion we can then proceed to 

the next  housekeeping issue.   20 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M'Lord.   Then I  have a short  

opening address.   I  don' t  know i f . . .   The appl icant obviously is 

ent i t led to proceed with h is opening address f i rst .  

COURT:  Yes I  th ink. . .   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I f  he wishes to make one.  25 
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COURT:  No I  th ink before we do opening addresses I  just 

need to hear you on  who commences with evidence, the duty 

to begin.   That 's been agreed.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t 's  been agreed in the pre -tr ia l  minute.  

COURT:  And that 's on page 50.   Okay.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Your . . . ( intervent ion)  

COURT:  Are there any other housekeeping matters?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No M'Lord.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry M'Lord,  I 've no object ion if  the respondent 

wishes to proceed.  10 

COURT:  Ja no,  no but you are under the agreement at  page 

50.  Look at  the pre-tr ia l  minutes,  r ight .   Have you got page 

50?  

MR LEWIS:  Ja. 

COURT:  And you wi l l  see at  the bottom there,  11:    15 

“Duty to begin :   Appl icant must begin leading evidence.”  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And by the way, that 's,  you know, subject  to w hat you 

have to te l l  me.   That is standardly what would happen.  

MR LEWIS:  Right , yes.  20 

COURT:  You'd have to demonstrate the discr iminat ion or the 

di f ferent iat ion.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  You have to establ ish al l  the pol ic ies .   You have to 

p lace yoursel f  in the category that  you do –  th is is oral 25 
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evidence.  There 's p lenty of  paper here which makes out your 

case, but  you now have to in fact give evidence to that ef fect.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .   M'Lord and there 's a. . . ,  there are var ious 

categories of  evidence before the Court  with regard to the 

dispute.   There 's an issue of  the f raudulent  contract  tendered 5 

by the respondent and the nature of  the contractual issues 

surrounding the dispute.   There 's the secondary issue which is 

the strange cla ims made by the respondent with regard to my 

re l igious out look and whether or not  I  am in fact  a Jew or in 

fact  Jewish.   Then there 's the object ions that  have been 10 

placed by the respondent with regard to my pol i t ical views, 

with regard to racia l  prof i l ing in the newsroom and there are 

also the harassment and int imidat ion/vict imisat ion issues.  So 

as the Court  p leases, I  can proceed with the evidence under 

those categories.  15 

COURT:  That 's f ine.   Who is your f i rst  wi tness?    

MR LEWIS:  Shelagh Goodwin would. . .   I  need to speak t o a 

Human Resources person with regards to the contract .   There 

is no bona f ide  contract  before th is Court .  

COURT:  Wel l ,  I  think you have to demonstrate that .  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right  so. . .  

COURT:  I  mean, my sense is that  you, you know, i t 's  subject 

to how you want run your case.  

MR LEWIS:  Ja. 

COURT:  But you need, I  th ink you need to get  into the box 25 
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and give evidence.  

MR LEWIS:  I  can demonstrate th is. . .  

COURT:  No, no just don' t  grandstand, Mr Lewis,  don' t  

grandstand, a lr ight?   Everyth ing that  I 've got  in f ront  of  me is 

paper.   5 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Nothing's proved.  

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Alr ight .   You need to get  into the box and prove i t .   

So what you would need to do. . .  10 

MR LEWIS:  Oh r ight  thank you.  

COURT:  You'd have to go into the witness box and w hat you 

would do is you would take the oath and then you would give 

evidence. 

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 15 

COURT:  Then Mr Kahanovitz would be ent i t led to cross -

examine you and then you'd be ent i t led to make any addit ional 

statements that  you might want to make.  You m ight have to 

answer quest ions that  I  might make.   

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 20 

COURT:  Af ter that  you may then cal l  other witnesses that 

might support  your case and then you close your case and 

then the respondent has to give evidence to counter the 

evidence that  you've given and then you wi l l  be ent i t led 

. . . ( intervent ion)25 
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MR LEWIS:  Your Honour,  I 'm at  a severe disadvantage.   Wel l,  

how is  i t  possib le for me to cross -examine my own –  my 

evidence if  I 'm now expected to give. . .  

COURT:  No, no you won' t  do,  no, no you don ' t  cross-examine 

your evidence.   5 

MR LEWIS:  I 'm supposed to give evidence.. .  

COURT:  You just give evidence.  You give evidence and I  wi l l  

assist  you as much as I can.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  before he goes into the box,  might 

I  address one or two issues?  10 

COURT:  Yes, yes okay.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  In opening.  

COURT:  But Mr Lewis hasn' t  real ly opened and he's. . .    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Wel l ,  I  don' t  know i f  he. ..  

COURT:  We've had a bi t  of  a d iscussion about the issue, so. . .   15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So.. .  

COURT:  Mr Kahanovi tz,  let  me just hear Mr Lewis.    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ja. 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  why don' t  you open your case and make 

your case?  Give me –  give me a conspectus of  your case.  20 

MR LEWIS ADDRESSES COURT:   Page 5 of  the index to 

respondent 's bundle of  documents,  there ' s a contract  of  

service for temporary staf f ,  f ixed term contract .   On page 15 

my signature as an employee with witnesses.   

COURT:  Yes.   25 
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MR LEWIS:  The –  i f  you not ice on page 5 on the r ight -hand 

bottom corner  of  the page there 's no in i t ia l .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord sorry,  might I  indicate?  I  th ink 

there is some confusion here.   I  th ink we are get t ing into the 

giving of  evidence and.. .  5 

COURT:  No, no.   I  was going to let  h im f in ish,  Mr Kahanovitz.   

Can you just . . .?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.   

COURT:  Real ly what I  want to do is. . .   What you are doing 

now is g iving evidence.  I  don' t  want you to give evidence f rom 10 

there.  You just  need to,  i f  you want to do so,  just  give a broad 

out l ine what the thrust  of  your case is.  

MR LEWIS:  Oh r ight .  

COURT:  To be quite f rank ,  I 've read the papers and I have a 

fa ir ly c lear idea, other than some of  your arguments which I ' l l  15 

come to in due course.   I  have an idea of  what your case is, 

but  i f  you want to address me, th is is the opportuni ty to do i t .  

MR LEWIS:  H'm, r ight .    

“Appl icant was employed  by respondent on or about 

March 2006 as a journal ist  in terms of  a three -month 20 

contract  which was entered into at  Bel lvi l le ,  Cape Town.   

At  Media 24 a system pol icy exists  in terms of  which i t  

caters to and maintains previously segregate d areas by 

pr int ing newspapers that  comply with racia l  prof i l ing and 

thus of  upholding racia l  d iv is ions.   The above 25 
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“discr iminates against  appl icant in that  in ter a l ia  

compl iance with h im by the above pol icy is contrary to 

h is re l igious and pol i t ical  views .  Dur ing his employment , 

which took place with in the jur isdict ion of  th is 

Honourable Court ,  appl icant endured the fo l lowing 5 

harassment.   Applicant 's r ight  to express his cul tural  l i fe 

as a person of  Jewish descent was denied in that  he was  

forced to work seven-day weeks.  Respondent was aware 

that  appl icant was Jewish and that  the above work week 

would prevent h im f rom observing part icular Jewish 10 

cul tural  expressions such as Shabbat .   Sedrick Tal jaard, 

manager for WP Koerant and Newspapers ,  harassed 

appl icant  by making an appointment with appl icant at 

4:00 a.m. in the morning,  requir ing appl icant to d istr ibute 

newspapers every Tuesday morning f rom 5:00 a.m. to 15 

7:30 a.m.,  requir ing appl icant to work 14 -hour days,  by 

stat ing that  in the event that  appl icant i s d issat isf ied with 

working in terms of  the above work parameters he can 

at tend the terminus and go home.  Warren Charles, 

Human Resources Manager for respondent made 20 

of fensive remarks regarding appl icant 's observance of  

Sabbath and appl icant 's observance of  h is cul tural  

her i tage.   Respondent fa i led to accept a number of  

appl icant 's art ic les for arbi t rary reasons, these being 

in ter a l ia :   I t 's above system or pol icy,  which 25 
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“discr iminates against  appl icant for the reasons as stated 

above.   Appl icant was dismissed without a hearing for 

arbi t rary reasons, these being in ter a l ia  h is re l igious, 

cul tural  and pol i t ical  views.   Respondent fa i led to comply 

with i ts  obl igat ions in terms of  the employment contract , 5 

despite a legi t imate expectat ion on the appl icant 's pa rt 

that  same would be renewed, especia l ly in l ight  of  an 

oral ,  a l ternat ively a taci t ,  a l ternat ively impl ied term that 

there would be a renewal.   The reasons for the non -

compl iance were arbi t rary.    10 

The legal issues that  ar ise f rom the above facts   

The discr iminatory system pol icy as appl ied by 

respondent amounts to unfair  d iscr iminat ion and is 

prohib i ted by Section 6 of  the Employment Equity Act  55 

of  1998.   The harassment set  out  above amounts to 15 

unfair  d iscr iminat ion and is prohib i ted by Sect ion 6 of  the 

Employment Equity Act  55 of  1998.  The fa i lure of  

respondent to renew appl icant 's contract  for the above 

reasons is a lso prohib i ted by Sect ion 6 of  the 

Employment Equity Act ,  the fo l lowing re l ief  which is 20 

sought:   An order that respondent unlawful ly contra venes 

Sect ion 6 of  Act  55 0f  1998  by applying a discr iminatory 

pract ice and harassing appl icant.   Respondent unlawful ly 

fa i led to renew appl icant 's contract  due to arbi t rary 

prohib i ted reasons and respondent is to pay appl icant an25 
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“amount.. . ”  

I t  says here of . . .   I 'm seeking 12 –  12 months.  This is drawn 

up by my –  an at torney.   Anyway.. .  

“Respondent is to pay appl icant an amount of  

R100 000,00, being a compensat ion for the  above-5 

ment ioned unfair  d iscr iminatory pract ises,  further and/or 

a l ternat ive re l ief ,  costs of  sui t . ”  

There 's a schedule of  documents which is at tached to the f i l ing 

sheet.   There 's a cert i f icate of  outcome.  There 's an art ic le on 

Jimmy Dludlu and:  10 

“Art ic les referred to above which were re jected by 

respondent shal l  be provided short ly. ”    

COURT:  Thank you.  

MR LEWIS:  This is the f i l ing sheet before the Court .  

COURT:  Thank you, Mr Lewis.   Mr Kahanovitz.  15 

MR KAHANOVITZ ADDRESSES COURT:   Thank you M'Lord.   I  

just  want to draw some features  of  the pleading to your 

at tent ion.   This is not  a c la im for unfair  d ismissal,  in other 

words one might have imagined from some of  the factual 

a l legat ions that  the actual  c la im would be one where the 20 

appl icant was cla iming that  th is was an automat ical ly unfair 

d ismissal based on discr iminat ion.   But i t 's  not.   There 's not  a 

c la im brought under the Labour Relat ions Act.   I t 's  a c la im 

brought under the Employment Equity Act  only and we wi l l  

obviously defend the case on that  basis.  25 
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 Just  a l i t t le  b i t  about who the respondent is.   Media 24 

consists of  in ter a l ia  the fo l lowing divis ions:   Media 24 

Newspapers,  Media 24 Magazines,  24.com and Paarl  Media.   

Media 24 Newspapers publ ishes almost 60 t i t les and 341 

mi l l ion newspapers annual ly.   Dai ly c i rculat ion is about 5 

800 000 and the bigger t i t les are Beeld,  Rapport ,  Ci ty  Press,  

The W itness which I  th ink was previously cal led The Natal 

Witness.   I  th ink i t 's  cal led The W itness now.   

 One of  i ts subdivis ions is Western Province Newspapers 

which publ ishes a t i t le  cal led People 's Post  and it  is  the 10 

appl icant 's employment with  People 's Post that  is the subject 

of  these proceedings.   People 's Post is a f ree community 

newspaper so i ts purpose is to focus  on community issues and 

to produce revenue by at t ract ing advert is ing to a part icular 

model which is a local -based community newspaper.  15 

 The appl icant worked on in tota l  two edit ions of  the 

People 's Post  before he was asked to leave the premises af ter 

he became wi ld ly abusive when the qual i ty of  h is work was 

chal lenged.   He then decided to launched a fu l l -f rontal  at tack.  

Not merely content to chal lenge the fa irness of  the non -20 

renewal of  h is f ixed term contract , he has invoked grandiose 

cla ims of  vast  conspiracy stretching back decades.    

I t  seems that everyone is to b lame for h is l i fe 's woes, so 

whatever happened in that  very short  per iod at  People 's Post  

is the consequence of  ant i -Semit ism, racism, is somehow 25 
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l inked to the Nazis,  to a process of  racia l  prof i l ing and so on 

and so forth and what we wi l l  proceed to show in due course is 

that none of  the issues re l ied on by him had any  re levance 

whatsoever to the event which led to h im being asked to 

p lease leave the premises on the basis that  the respondent 5 

would agree to pay him out for the balance of  h is contract ,  but 

in c ircumstances where he was asked to p lease not be 

physical ly present at  work during the remainder of  h is contract .  

He received that  money.  There is a document in the 

bundle which says that  the money was received in fu l l  and f inal 10 

set t lement that  I  in  due course wi l l  ask the appl icant what he 

meant when he signed that  document ,  but I  cannot argue on 

the basis of  what is contained in that  let ter a lone, that  a l l  or 

any disputes between the part ies have been set t led.   That in 

short ,  M'Lord,  is our case.   15 

COURT:  Thank you, Mr Kahanovitz.   Mr Lewis,  I  th ink you 

should come and take the oath.    

MR LEWIS:  Oh must I  give evidence?  We.. .  

COURT:  Ja,  ja no you must come to the witness box.   Take 

your papers with you so that  you can refer to them.   20 

MR LEWIS:  Certa in of  my papers. . .  

COURT:  Because you cla im you're going to ne ed them.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  might I  indicate,  we've put bundles 

there for witnesses.  Just . . . ,  we don' t  want i t  then to get 

confused.   25 
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COURT:  Okay.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I f  the registrar could just  upl i f t  the. ..   

Maybe we should,  yes,  can we just  hold on to them unless. . .  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry Your Honour,  I  object  to being put in th is 

posi t ion.  5 

COURT:  Okay wel l . . .  

MR LEWIS:  H'm, I 'm prepared to answer quest ions put to me 

by your good self .   I 'm not prepared to answer quest ions put to 

me by the respondent without the aid of  an at torney.  

COURT:  Wel l . . .   10 

MR LEWIS:  I  have a r ight .   I  have a r ight .   I  have approached 

the High Court  as an in  forma pauperis  request ing an at torney 

f rom your company and I  haven' t  –  I  don' t  have an at torney 

now to –  so that  there can be some kind of  mediat ion between 

the –  the at tacks that  I  –  I 'm being attacked by the respondent.  15 

COURT:  Mr . . . ( intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Now how am I  supposed to –  how am I supposed 

to respond? 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you've entered into l i t igat ion here.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  20 

COURT:  You've demonstrated more than a working knowledge 

of  the dif ferent  provis ions of  the dif ferent  statutes.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  For a lay person you have structured many of  your 

arguments,  based on both the statutes and the pr incip les of  25 
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law.  You must have understood what was going to happen 

today, that  in a t r ia l  you have to give evidence.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Evidence has to be done in th is instance by you 

giving oral  test imony.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And you have to  take the oath and then you give 

evidence, evidence in support of  your case.   

MR LEWIS:  Yes h 'm.. .  

COURT:  And as –  and.. .   Please don' t  in terrupt  me.    10 

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.  

COURT:  And when that ,  when you've given your evidence, 

then i t 's  absolute ly standard in courts of  the land.. .  

MR LEWIS:  H'm. 

COURT:  You have to take quest ions under cross -examinat ion 15 

f rom the other s ide.   There 's no quest ion of  at tacks.  These 

are simply quest ions that  are asked and you have to answer 

them honest ly and on the basis of your answers I  wi l l  make 

assessment on the probabi l i t ies,  af ter having heard their 

witnesses and I 'd make an assessment on credib i l i ty and that 's 20 

the way in which I  would be able to resolve the clear d isputes 

of  fact  between yoursel f  and the respondent .   Just  as you have 

the r ight  to come to court  and give evidence .. .   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  So they have a r ight  to respond to the evidence that 25 
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you cal l .  

MR LEWIS:  Yes r ight .  

COURT:  To quest ion you and to lead their  own wi tnesses.   

You in due course,  when they lead their  witnesses, you may 

cross-examine them.  You've come to th is court  knowing fu l l  5 

wel l  that  you have to give evidence and you've done so without 

an at torney.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  So.. .   

MR LEWIS:  I 'm, Your Honour I 'm.. .  10 

COURT:  And –  p lease –  by the way. . .   

MR LEWIS:  Right , r ight .  

COURT:  This is a court ,  the status of  the High Court.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  I t 's  not  Your Honour,  i t 's  M'Lord.  15 

MR LEWIS:  M'Lord,  r ight .   So M'Lord,  h 'm, I 'm prepared to 

take quest ions f rom M'Lord.   I  am not prepared to take 

quest ions f rom the respondent,  h 'm, to be cross -examined by 

him.  He's welcome to put  h is quest ions in wr i t ing.   I 'm 

disadvantaged.  I 'm supposed to now represent myself  and 20 

give evidence at  the same t ime and I 'm –  i t 's  two complete ly 

d i f ferent  ro les that I  have to –  two dif ferent  funct ions with in the 

court .   I 've been denied legal representat ion, part ly to do with 

the attacks by the respondent.   I  had legal insurance which 

was repudiated on the basis of  those at tacks.   I 've approach ed 25 
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the courts, request ing legal representat ion and there 's st i l l  an 

appl icat ion pending before the High Court  with regard to that 

representat ion.   So I  wi l l  refuse to give –  to answer any 

quest ions under oath towards the.. . ,  put  to me by the –  by the 

respondent.   I 'm quite prepared to answer quest ions put to me 5 

by your good sel f .  

COURT:  That 's not  how courts work and I 'm not going to s i t  

here and give you legal advice.   The issue here is you can 

refuse to answer the quest ions put to you by the 

representat ive of  Media 24,  the respondent.  10 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  But your d if f icul ty is that then I 'm going to have to 

assess the veraci ty of  your evidence, which is untested  

because you won' t  answer the quest ions being put to you by 

the other s ide, which means that  when I have to balance the 15 

probabi l i t ies between the evidence that  they put forward and 

the evidence that  you put forward,  you wi l l  be at  a 

d isadvantage.   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT: Whole point  about th is process,  Mr Lewis,  is that  you 20 

give your evidence.    

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  And you al low the other side,  which is a r ight  that 

they have, to quest ion you.  

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  25 



MR KAHANOVITZ 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

37 ADDRESS 

 

04.11.2009/14:03-16:07/EdB  /…  

COURT:  And you can answer or not  answer.  

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  

COURT:  I f  you don' t  answer you must understand what the 

inference is.  

MR LEWIS:  H'm yes.  5 

COURT:  The inference is that  –  an inference one might draw 

is that  you do not want to answer a d if f icul t  quest ion.   That 

then leads me to an inference that  I  f ind ei ther your evidence 

not credib le. . .  

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  10 

COURT:  Or not  probable.   So you real ly have to make a 

decis ion as to whether you are going to conduct th is case as 

any lawyer,  sorry as any witness,  any appl icant does in every 

court  in th is land.   

MR LEWIS:  Alr ight .  15 

COURT:  Okay?  There 's no specia l d ispensat io n for you, no 

quest ion about putt ing quest ions in wri t ing.   You ei ther answer 

the quest ions put to you by the respondent or you don' t  and 

then th is Court  then draws the inference f rom your fa i lure or 

your refusal to do so.   I t 's now teat ime.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And I  suggest that  we take the short  adjournment and 

that  you ser iously th ink about how you want to proceed and 

then I ' l l  hear f rom you at  11:30. 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  25 
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COURT ADJOURNS  (at 15:17)  

COURT RESUMES (at 14:03) 

PART OF RECORDING AFTER  PREVIOUS ADJOURNMENT 

IS MISSING 

EVIDENCE FOR THE PLAINTIFF (CONTINUED)  5 

DAVID ROBERT LEWIS:  (s.u.o.)  

COURT:  Mr Lewis.   Mr Lewis,  you're st i l l  under oath  and you 

were describ ing what happened at  the meet ing on 30 May 

when we adjourned.   ---   Right .   H'm.. .   I 'm looking for one of  

the documents that . . .   Okay the extract  f rom People 's Post,  10 

page 29.  Right .    

 Is that  29 of  the appl icant 's bundle of  documents or the 

respondent 's?  ---   H'm, respondent 's bundle of  documents.  

So the issue is what occurred at the  evaluat ion meet ing.   The 

respondent was very unhappy with my performance.  Dean 15 

ra ised the issue of ,  I  would take i t  i t  would be th is page.  The 

problem that  I 've got  is one of  the reasons why I  cal led the 

witnesses was to provide the Court  with some indi cat ion as to 

what the production process is at  Media 24,  how they 

comprise. . .   There 's –  there 's several  processes, d ist inct 20 

processes in the product ion process.   I 've got  a notebook 

which records –  I  actual ly haven' t  brought i t  here for some 

reason.  There 're d i f ferent  colours associated with whether a 

page is for instance in gathering or –  or in layout or ready for 

publ icat ion.   So one of  the tasks that  I  had in product ion was 25 
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layout and subbing of  pages .  As the Court  has already heard I 

at tended a –  an Eidos retra in ing program at –  at  Media 24 in 

which I  was retra ined.  I 'm prof ic ient  in QuarkXPress and I  was 

retra ined on their . . . ,  they've got a very part icular system.  I t 's 

a l inear edi t ing sui te in which pages can come from any 5 

number of  areas in the company and –  and go through various 

processes.  In th is instance there was a process where I  was 

expected to put  var ious stor ies onto the page and lay them 

out.  I t 's not  uncommon in my experience with publ ic –  

publ ishing of  th is nature that  the late adver t is ing af fects the 10 

composit ion of  the page.  I f  you not ice on th is page there is –  

there 's an advert  which hasn' t  been placed.  And s o the nature 

of  the program, the Eidos program, h 'm, i t 's  a very part icular 

program.  There was an issue with the metadata and the data 

l ine which I . . .   One of  the reasons I  wanted to cal l  Hanl ie 15 

Gouws is to avai l  of  some informat ion with regard to the 

metadata.   This is a –  was an isolated instance in which the 

page wasn' t  properly la id out  because ei ther (a) there was not 

enough content or (b) the advert is ing hadn' t  been f inal ised.   I  

not ice that  the author of  the page is D Lewis.   I 've –  there 's no 20 

indicat ion as to what –  at  what stage th is –  th is page was at.   I  

don' t  bel ieve th is would have been submitted for publicat ion.  

I t  wasn' t  ready and would have gone through some kind of  

qual i ty contro l .   Be that  as i t  may, th is was an isolated 

incident.   The reason I wanted to cal l  Br ian Gaffney is that  h is 25 
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s ignature is attached to a page in the appl icant 's bundle of  

documents.   I tem 9:    

“Signed of f  page ready for publ icat ion ”.  

Page 25. 

Sorry,  you've lost  me.  Where am I?   ---   Sorry.   H'm, 5 

page 25 of  index to appl icant 's bundle of  documents.  

Appl icant 's bundle?  ---  Appl icant 's bundle of  documents.  

There 's a People 's Post sports  page signed by Brian Gaffney 

and myself  and some other person.  

Okay.  -- -   Ostensib ly th is would be a page ready for 10 

publ icat ion.   I t 's  my experience in laying out,  subbing pages 

for the Cape Times that  th is would be considered de r igueur  

and in terms of  qual i ty contro l  th is  would have been the. . .   I f  

Dean had actual ly referred to a s imilar page there would have 

been maybe an issue.  She's referr ing to a . . . ( intervent ion)  15 

Now just  expla in to me.  ---   Right .  

I  don't  understand the. .. ,  why you've referred to  page 25 

and.. .   - --   Right,  th is is with regard to the al legations of  

gross. . . ,  i t  wasn' t  misconduct but  inabi l i ty to complete work in 

a,  you know, she al leged that  I  ef fect ively was not capable of  20 

doing the task that I  was tasked with.  

So real ly what you 're saying is that  what page 25 does is 

i t 's  an example of  your work?  ---   Right .  

Now and then th is person Brian who?  ---   Gaffney.  

Gaffney.   ---   He's. . . ,  r ight .  25 
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And you want –  and why do you want to cal l  h im?  ---   

H'm, i t  was just  to.. .  

To conf i rm?  ---   Conf irm that  th is is indeed his 

s ignature.   

Okay and what is Mr Gaffney again?  ---   Mr Gaffney is 5 

the sports wri ter for the People 's Post.  

And would he,  just to understand th is,  why would he sign 

i t?  ---   By signing i t  he was okaying the contents of  h is own 

wri t ing,  h 'm, s ince there was an issue as to the qual i ty contro l 

in the company.   The page is –  is  la id out  and ready for pr int .  10 

So i f  the respondent d idn't  contest , doesn' t  contest  that 

th is is h is s ignature,  would you need to cal l  h im?  ---   No. 

Sorry now, so you're st i l l  a t  the meet ing.   ---   Right .  

So.. .  

Okay so the one issue that 's ra ised is the page on page 15 

29 of  the respondent 's bundle.   ---   Right .   I t  was an isolated 

instance of  a page which hadn' t  been signed of f  or wasn' t  

ready for publ icat ion. 

Okay.  ---   Right .   I  was then subject  to abuse and 

int imidat ion by Sedrick Tal jaard.   Hy het vir  my gesê as:   Ons 20 

het d ie geld gegee waar ons hom –  dis ons pond vle is.   I  wish 

the Court  to –  to note the obvious. .. ,  I  th ink i t 's  The Merchant 

of  Venice, the, was i t . . .?  One of  the characters actual ly says 

the exact  same words in the then context  of  was i t  Iago, one of  

the Jews.  I t  was one of  the –  one of  the very few 25 
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Shakespearian Jewish characters.   The exact  same words are 

used in –  in  Shakespeare .   I  was then also subject to abuse 

and vict imisat ion with regard to the Jewish Sabbath.    

Now before we get there, in the meeting .   ---   Right  yes.  

Oh sorry,  was th is ra ised in the meet ing?  -- -   This is the 5 

meet ing.   This was ra ised in the meeting.  

Okay now I  just  want to f in ish of f  to be qui te c lear.   ---   

Alr ight  I . . . ,  yes.   

So th is is the –  th is is one issue they –  he ra ises with 

you?  ---   Right .  10 

Then the, okay the next  issue is. . .?  ---   H'm.. .  

Is th is your complaint ,  your overt ime complaint?  ---   Yes, 

in the evaluat ion.  

Okay so now th is is in response to the overt ime 

complaint .   Is that r ight?  ---   Right ,  i t 's  contained in the –  my 15 

bundle of  documents.    

Okay, so what d id they say?  ---   H'm alr ight ,  what d id 

they say.  

Or f i rst  of  a l l  just  to,  f i rs t  of  a l l  p lease expla in the 

overt ime complaint .   What is i t  precisely?  ---   The problem 20 

was that  in order to fu lf i l  the –  the demands made upon me I 

was working wel l  in to the Fr iday Shabbat .   For me Shabbat  is 

my qual i ty t ime, i t 's  my pr ivate t ime.  I 've grown up with in the 

context  of  an Orthodox community in which  Shabbat  is  a Fr iday 

af fa ir .   The –  the company, as far as I 'm concerned, has 25 
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absolute ly no business dictat ing to me what I  do on a Fr iday 

night .   Nevertheless ,  when I  ra ised th is issue Warren Charles 

objected.   He essent ia l ly said that  i f  I 'm, you know, what 

exact ly was I  doing on Friday nights.   He objected to the fact 

that  on one of  the Fr iday evenings I  had actual ly gone to a 5 

c lub on the West End and was l istening to jazz music.   In fact  I  

was l istening to the Glenn Robertson Jazz Band af ter they 

extended me an invi tat ion.   As far as I 'm concerned the 

company has absolute ly no business enquir ing into my 

observances.  I  –  I  wish the Court to hear expert  test imony 10 

with regard to what those observances should or shouldn' t  be 

with regard to what is considered usual,  normal pract ice with in 

the Jewish community.   Also I  –  I  don' t  regard –  I  don' t  –  I  

don' t  bel ieve th is Court  has jur isdict ion to determine what 

Sabbath,  Fr iday night  observances should be.   There's qui te 15 

an extensive response to the recent a l legat ions made by the 

respondent in the latest  amendment.  I  would l ike to vis i t  that 

i f  possib le.  On page 91.  

Of?  ---   Of  my –  of  the plead –  he index to p leadings.  

91?  ---   Yes.  20 

“Appl icant has shown that  he is a member of  the Jewish 

fa i th.”  

I  don' t  want you to read i t  out.   ---   Not? 

I  just  want you to. . .   You can refer to the page.  ---   Refer 

to i t .  25 
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You can refer me to the page, just and remember what 

we're deal ing with here is Mr. . .   - --   Warren Charles.  

Warren Charles's object ion.   ---   Right .  

And so let 's just . . .   - --   Yes,  he objected.   He said. . .  

To what you were doing on a Fr iday night .   ---   Right ,  i t 's  5 

that  what I  do on a Fr iday night  on . . .( intervent ion)  

And you've said that  that 's your  t ime and i t 's  not  for the 

respondent to enquire.   ---   Precisely.  

Okay.  Okay so what e lse?  ---   H'm.. .   The respondent 's 

Sedrick Tal jaard then uni lateral ly terminated the contract  of  10 

employment, which was in any event inval id.  

The.. .   I f  i t  was inval id i t  couldn' t  be terminated, so I  

guess. . .   - --   Precisely.   I  don' t  –  I  don' t  actual ly know how 

they've managed to concoct such a story.  

So he terminated the contract?  ---   Right ,  wi thout any 15 

reference to the Labour Relat ions Act  or the Employment 

Equity.  

And how did he do that?  ---   By physical ly removing me 

f rom the premises.  

Did he say anything?  ---   H'm, he. ..   What d id he do?  He 20 

–  he made some kind of  grunt ing sound.  He threatened, 

int imidated me with h is –  he 's a much larger person than I  am 

and he.. .  

So you infer that he had terminated the contract  by 

removing you physical ly?  He didn' t  say anything?  He just ,  25 
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wel l . . .    - --   No he said he's terminat ing the contract.   

Right  and so real ly there were two issues at  the meet ing.   

The one was the compla int  concerning the layout of  that 

part icular art ic le and the other one was your overt ime 

complaint ,  about being required to work on Fr iday,  Fr iday 5 

af ternoons.  ---   Right .  

And evenings.   ---   Right .  

And then their  response to that .  So were those the two 

issues that  were at  the.. .?  ---   Yes,  I  would say those were the 

main issues.  10 

Okay.  - --   I  just  wish to point  out  that  the respondent has 

actual ly contested whether or not  I  am a Jew and i t 's 

. . . ( intervent ion)  

My understanding and I  might be wrong and Mr 

Kahanovitz can conf i rm, is that  I  understood them to make the 15 

concession that  you are a Jew.  Is that  correct , Mr Kahanovitz?      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.   Might I  just  expla in where 

some of  th is confusion came in and i t  st i l l  remains?  The 

appl icant says that  he is a phi lo - or phi lo-Semite (d i f ferent 

pronunciat ions)  and you wi l l  see in our bundle there there 's a 20 

let ter which he wrote to the Jewish Board of  Deput ies.  

COURT: Yes.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Which we wi l l  a rgue that  by def ini t ion i t  

postulates that  he's not  Jewish but that . . .   In other words 

there 's no point  in a Jew being a philo -Semite.   I t 's  some –  i t 's 25 
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an at t r ibute that  certa in Gent i les have where they have a 

part icular at t ract ion to Judaism for reasons best  known to 

them.  Then there were var ious  documents f i led about I  th ink 

some –  there were stuf f  about whether or not  he'd been for a 

mikvah at  the Long Street  swimming pool et  cetera, et  cetera.  5 

COURT:  Ja no but a l l  of  these issues, Mr Kahanovitz,  as I  

understood i t  you did ra ise i t  in your appl icat ion to amend that 

he wasn' t  a Jew.     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  yes.  

COURT:  But what I  understand you now to say is that  a l l  of  10 

th is is no longer an issue.     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.   The only th ing is in issue now is 

whether  there was ever any discussion where he ra ised his 

Judaism and said that  in consequence of  h is Judaism he needs 

his working hours a l tered.   15 

COURT:  Ja.    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Secondly,  i f  he is a Jew, is he in fact  what 

is cal led a pract is ing Jew for whom observance of  the Sabbath 

would be an important  issue.  

COURT:  Okay.  But the issue, the test imony is qui te c lear 20 

here.    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ja. 

COURT:  The quest ion is that  whether he's a Jew or not  is no 

longer a matter in d ispute.     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Exact ly M'Lord,  yes.  25 
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COURT:  So Mr Lewis,  they have now conceded the issue.  ---   

Right .  

 And as you heard,  there are issues of  course f lowing.. .    

- --   I 've heard,  r ight  and I 'm very interested.  

 Flowing f rom i t  that  you –  that you probably have to 5 

address .. . ( intervent ion) ---    Yes I 'm very interested in these 

issues because you know, obviously th is would probably be 

worded di f ferent ly,  but  in their  not ice of  intent ion to amend 

they're saying that  even i f  I  had asked to a l ter the working 

hours on the grounds of  my endurance(?) to the Jewish fa i t h, 10 

that  the request would have been denied.  

 Okay, let  me just . . .   Which page number are you referr ing 

to?  ---   H'm, I 'm looking at  page 97, point 47 which refers to 

point  42.1(?) of  not ice of  intent ion to amend.  

 That 's r ight ,  i t 's  page 97?  ---   97 of  the pleadings.  15 

 Of the pleadings,  I 've got  that  and i t 's . . .   - --   Point  47.  

 Point  47.       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No, ( indist inct –  speaking away f rom 

microphone).   

COURT:  Okay let  me just  ask you.   One of  the issues ra ised 20 

by Mr Kahanovitz is one that  I  th ink you need to address.   ---   

Right .  

 Did you ever advise the respondent that  you were 

Jewish?  ---   Wel l ,  th is is an interest ing point  because  i t 's  one 

of  the reasons I 've cal led Shelagh Goodwin who –  of  the 25 
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Human Resources department.   My quest ion is,  is i t  acceptable 

in today's age to –  for th is to be an issue?  Surely Human 

Resources being what i t  is ,  th is is a quest ionnaire that  one f i l ls  

out .   When you enter a company the size of  Media 24 you can' t  

just . . .   A company that  s ize can' t  assume that  everyone i s a 5 

member of  the same fa i th and you know, with regard to the 

issue of  d isparate t reatment and di f ferent iat ion  th is –  the 

quest ion is are the tests that  are being put,  are those, you 

know, is th is reasonable?  A Christ ian for instance seeking 

employment at  the company, would the –  a Christ ian –  person 10 

of  Christ ian fa i th have undergone the same kind of  test?  And 

what is the pol icy with regard to members of  the Christ ian fa i th 

who have dif ferent –  a d if ferent approach to Christ iani ty?  I t 's 

not  a monol i th ic t radi t ion and neither is Judaism.  Judaism is 

not  monol i th ic.   So I  have a –  I  have an expert  here also 15 

wi l l ing to test i fy wi th that  regard.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  might I  just  indicate?  Maybe be of  

some assistance if . . .   The points we make at  page 67 o f  the 

pleadings f i le  and maybe I  should just  formal ly. . .   The 

paragraph 41 is the one point  we make which the witness 20 

might want to address,  that he never complained that h is 

working hours conf l icted with h is re l igious bel iefs.   42,  42.1 

we'd ask that  that  now be deleted because we're not  pursuing 

that  and then the words “a lso”,  “a lso unsurpr is ingly”  should 

come out.   So the content ion would be now he is not an 25 
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observant Jew and does not observe the Jewish Sabbath and 

keep i t  holy.  

COURT:  So what is being changed from 42.2?  Just  the word 

“unsurpr is ingly”?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  The phrase.. .   Yes,  yes.   Just  take out the 5 

words “a lso unsurpr is ingly”.   I  mean there is obviously some 

dif f icul ty with p leading th is because our case is s imply that  the 

issue actual ly never arose.  But insofar as the Court  may f ind 

that  there was indeed  a discussion about whether or not  the 

respondent was prepared to accommodate his re l igious bel iefs, 10 

I  intend to cross-examine him on whether those bel iefs actual ly 

would have required him  to work or not  work certa in hours.  

COURT:  But I  think,  but  I  th ink honest ly I 'm going to leave 

that  for you to do under cross -examinat ion.     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  15 

COURT:  He just  has to set  out  h is case and al l  I 'm trying to do 

is to ensure that he sets h is case out.    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.  

COURT:  And certa in ly these are issues that  you would cross -

examine him on.  20 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord.   ---   H'm.. .  

COURT:  Alr ight .   ---   So what is the quest ion then?  

 The quest ion simply was that  d id you advi se the 

respondent that  you were Jewish and what –  and I  understood 

you to say that  you didn' t  and you don' t  have to.  ---   No, you 25 
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see the th ing is that  I  –  they- the respondent was on –  under 

the advice that  I  was Jewish.   The –  the –  they're contest ing 

the manner in which my observance of  the Sabbath occurs.  

The issue of  whether or not  I 'm Jewish is not  re levant.  

 Did you te l l  them that  you were Jewish at  any point?  ---   5 

H'm.. .   I  was –  I  assumed that they knew that  I  was Jewish.   I  

assumed that  s ince I  was having a d iscussion as to the nature 

of  Judaism that one wouldn' t  have had such a discussion if  I  

was of  –  of  another fa i th.  

 When was th is d iscussion?  ---   During the evaluat ion 10 

meet ing.   I  –  I  do real ise that  –  that  the dictates of  the 

company was such that  i f  I  was more –  i f  I  had objected more 

strongly perhaps it  might have resulted in a bet ter outcome.  

This is the f i rst t ime I 've actual ly experienced  working 

condit ions in which I 've had to, you know, which have been so 15 

beyond the pale.  There was also int imidat ion by –  by Sedrick 

Tal jaard with regard to the work parameters .   So –  so the issue 

only came up in evaluat ion.    

 Okay.  Anything else on the meet ing of  30 May?  ---   

H'm.. .  20 

 There 's the meet ing and then af ter the meet ing you' re 

physical ly removed f rom the premises.   ---   Yes I  was 

physical ly. . .  

 And you are to ld by Mr Tal jaard  –  i t 's  your version ,  as I  

understand i t ,  that  the contract was terminated.  ---  25 
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Terminated.   Fol lowing the terminat ion there was a request by 

a legal advisor to –  for a copy of  the contract .  The request 

was denied.  I t  took about a month.   There is a 

correspondence in my bundle of  documents.   There 's a lso a 

let ter by Michael Bagraim.  5 

 Is i t  re levant now?  ---   H'm, i t 's  re levant in –  in  

determining what the circums tances of  the terminat ion or 

d ismissal,  how –  what the circumstances were.   There 's a –  

there 's a letter actual ly with. . .   I  just  want to see i f  i t  is  41(?).  

H'm, 41. ..   Actually i t 's  in the –  the respondent 's bundle of  10 

documents actual ly.  

 Again is that  let ter. . .?  I  mean the point  is i t 's  been 

refused.  That 's what you say.   ---   Right .  

 But the contract  that 's present ly before us is 

. . . ( intervent ion)  ---   The –  the let ter actual ly,  i t 's  qui te an 15 

interest ing use of  words.   The legal advisor said i t  was a wel l -

known fact  that I 'm not an Orthodox Jew.    

 Alr ight ,  which page is that?  ---   H'm, 41. . .   Page 41 of  

respondent 's bundle.   I t  says here:  

“ I t 's  a wel l -known fact  that  our member is not an 20 

Orthodox Jew, hence he observed the Sabbath on Friday 

evening sunset unt i l  Saturday evening sunset but  was 

demanded by Mr Sedrick Tal jaard to work on th is holy 

period.   Our pol icy holder 's contract  was terminated by 

Media 24 before complet ion thereof.   Our pol icy holder 25 
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“ instructs us to request you to re imburse our member for 

one month 's outstanding salary. ”  

 Okay wel l ,  I  can read the let ter.   ---   There 's also 

correspondence.. .  

 What is the re levance of  the let ter?  ---   H'm.. .   The 5 

re levance of  the let ter,  i t  was –  i t  was wri t ten by an uninformed 

individual with very low level  of  educat ion.  

 With?  ---   I  –  I  presume if  I 'd  had access to bet ter legal 

assistance at  that point th ings would have been a lot easier.  

There 're a lso –  there 's a lso simi lar correspondence in my 10 

bundle of  documents.  

 Again,  what does the correspondence demonstrate?  

That 's real ly  what I 'm want ing to know f rom you.  ---   I t  

demonstrates that there was an at tempt to resolve the issue 

with regard to my –  to the –  to the problem of  whether or not I  15 

was a Jew, what I  was ent i t led to in terms of  the  contract  and 

how the contract  was terminated.  

 Okay.  Alr ight  then.. .   - --   So then –  then there 's the 

issue of  –  that 's been ra ised here in court  about th is doctr ine 

of  phi lo-Semit ism.   20 

 Do we real ly have to go into i t ,  given the fact  that  they 

have made the concession that  you're Jewish?  -- -   Yes, 

because they seem to be making some kind of  statement with 

regard to my observance.  They –  they seem to be making 

some kind of  a l legat ion that ,  h 'm...  25 
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 Well ,  le t them.. .   ---   What is that  a l legat ion? 

 Let  Mr Kahanovitz ask the quest ions.  ---   Please. 

 And you answer them when he does.  ---   Right .  

 So I  don't  th ink i t 's. . .   - --   Alr ight .  

 As far as I  can see at  the present moment,  moment 5 

they'd made that  concession to you the issue fa l ls away.   Then 

I  want you to go back to the statement of  facts,  page 4.   We've 

dealt  wi th 4.2.    

“4.3  The above discr iminates against  appl icant in that  i t  

is  contrary to h is re l igious and pol i t ical  views.”  10 

Now insofar as your re l igious views are concerned, are the 

facts that  they required you to work seven days a week and on 

Friday evenings?  Is that the issue?  ---   Right ,  that 's general ly 

against  what I  consider to be normal pract ice.   I t 's 

d iscr iminatory.  15 

 Okay so the discr iminat ion is requir ing you.. .   - --   Right .  

 . . .as a Jew to work on Fr iday,  on what 's i t?  ---   Shabbat .  

 Shabbat .   Is there any other d iscr iminat ion conduct?  ---   

Well ,  wel l  the discr iminat ion against  my pol i t ical  bel iefs.  

Alr ight .   - --   Which are actual ly in formed by my Judeo 20 

bel iefs.  

Okay.  Now the discr iminat ion on pol i t ical  bel iefs.   ---   

Right .  

What conduct of  theirs. . . ,  in  what way did they 

discr iminate against  you?  ---   H'm, just in terms of  the 25 
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demographics.   They –  they essent ia l ly forced me into a racia l  

category.   They were expect ing me to del ive r art ic les that 

compl ied with some kind of  pol icy that  was a racia l ized pol icy.   

So there 's a –  there 's a response in the –  I 've responded in the 

–  my response to their  amendment.  5 

Then in 4.4 you say that  your r ight  to express your 

cul tural  l i fe  as a person of  Jewish descent was denied.   ---   

Right .  

In that  you were forced to work seven days.   Is that  the 

same issue that we've been deal ing with a l l  a long?  ---   H'm, I  10 

bel ieve so.   That would be the issue.  

Then 4.4.2 you state that the appl icant was –  the 

respondent was aware that  you were Jewish.   ---   Right .  

But you've given evidence to the fact that they only learnt  

of  i t  at  the evaluat ion meet ing.   ---   H 'm no, no that  wouldn' t  be 15 

correct .        

Well ,  you te l l  us what. . .   - --   They only have –  only have 

evidence to corroborate that  they can' t  deny that  I  was Jewish.  

They would have known that  I  was Jewish because I 'm 

accepted as a Jew by members of  the community.   I t 's  no –  i t 's 20 

no secret.   I  –  I  can prove that  –  that  people have always 

known that  I  was a  Jew.  I t 's  not  an open secret .   The –  the 

quest ion is,  was Human Resources in derel ict ion of  some duty 

by not . . .   You know, were the pol ic ies  of  Human Resources 

discr iminatory of  –  by any nature;  is  there some kind of  25 
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omission or fa i lure on their  part .  

To f ind out?  ---   Right ,  wel l  –  wel l  surely i f  –  i f  there was 

a problem, surely Human Resources.. .   I t 's a –  i t 's  a pro forma 

quest ionnaire one f i l ls  out  when you jo in a large concern.   I  –  

presumably i f  I  had been re located to China the –  the company 5 

has publ icat ions and periodicals in China –  that  I  would have 

simi lar issues by I 'm not Chinese.   I  don' t  th ink Chinese people 

would necessari ly know my history.  

Then 4.4.3 you record the harassment.   ---   Right .  

In four incidents.   ---   Right .  10 

Would you ( indist inct)  lead evidence in that?   ---   H 'm, 

r ight ,  4.4.3.1 i t 's  specious.   I t 's  –  i t 's  just  indicat ion of  the 

manner in which the company commandeered my t ime and 

taking my t ime carte b lanche without any reference to the 

Labour Relat ions Act.  15 

Right,  maybe you can just  expla in to me what happened 

and just  on the facts.   ---   Right ,  h 'm.. .  

Just  give evidence here,  not  an argument.   Evidence.  ---   

Right  the. . .   Right  yes,  r ight .   The –  the respondent made an 

appointment at  4:00 a.m. in the morning.   My diary records that 20 

the dispatch was, for the newspaper arose at  4:00 a.m.  I  only 

actual ly got  to work must have been half  past  f ive.   There is 

correspondence between myself  and the company in which the 

–  Sedrick Tal jaard requests my presence.  What 's qui te 

interest ing is –  is  the way he requested i t .  25 
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H'm.. .   - --   I f  I  can just  f ind that document.   I t 's  in 

respondent '  bundle of  documents, i tem 6,  page 19 to 20 I 

bel ieve.  

Right ,  say that  again.   ---   Page 19. 

Of?  ---   Of  the respondent 's bundle of  documents,  and 5 

a lso 21.  You' l l  not ice that  there are di f ferent  t imes.  Page 19 

records that  there 's a  Tuesday morning 23 r d  of  May f rom 6:00 

a.m. to 8:00 a.m. they're going to d ish out hundreds of  the new 

publ icat ions,  but  on page 21 he talks about f rom six o 'c lock 

unt i l  e ight .   Sorry.   ( Indist inct  –  speaks in an undertone).   Ah, 10 

here we go.  A more detai led emai l  wi th a descr ipt ion of  a l l  the 

specif ic h i t  points : 

“ . . .where you need to be at  5:30 to put  up banners.   W il l  

be sent to you later today.”  

I t 's  sort  of  a –  i t 's  an example of  the manner in which the 15 

respondent conducted business.   So a six o 'c lock appointment 

turned into 5:30 appointment and so i t  went.   So you would 

end up for instance a deadl ine at four o 'c lock,  your contract 

saying that  you work unt i l  f ive but  no w you're s i t t ing there 

working unt i l  10:30.   The same th ing happened, so on th is 20 

part icular occasion I  was expected to be there no later than 

5:30 but in fact  that  became a 4:30 appointment.  

 Well  le t 's just ,  let 's just  be. ..  I 'm referr ing to the 4.4.3.2.  

---   Right .  

“Requires the appl icant to d istr ibute newspapers every 25 
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“Tuesday morning f rom 5:00 a.m. to 7:30 a.m.”  

Is i t  every Tuesday throughout your period or just  on those –  

on that date, 23 May?  ---   H'm wel l ,  I  had no way of  knowing.  

This was in the last  –  the last two weeks pr ior to the dismissal 

or terminat ion.   H'm.. .   The Tuesday morning appointments, 5 

in i t ia l ly they were a once -of f  promot ion.   I  would have 

considered i t  –  I  wouldn' t  have had an issue with i t  even as –  

as a sort  of  corporate teambu i ld ing exercise,  but  the –  i t 's  an –  

i t 's  sort  of  s imi lar to i f  a media manager had to enrol me in a 

Saturday morning rugby team, once -of f  as a –  as a corporate 10 

teambui ld ing exercise  is a l l  very wel l . . .  

 Alr ight .   ---   But to enrol  me for the next  couple o f  

months at  that  t ime.. .  

 Alr ight  now let  me just get  f rom you quite c lear ly.   ---   

Right .  15 

 The emai l  that  you've referred me to on page 19 and 

page 21.. .   - --   Alr ight  there 's.. .   Right .  

 . . . is  referr ing to Tuesday 23 May.  - --   Right ,  and at  5:30 

p.m. in  the morning –  a.m. 

 Well ,  we' l l . . .   Ja,  so and that 's what i t  says,  they're going 20 

to d ish out f rom six o 'c lock but  you have to be in posi t ion at 

5:30.   ---   I 've got  to be there at  5:30 ja.  

 Alr ight  and then to that  extent  4.4.3.2 is not  5:00 a.m. 

but  5:30,  am I  r ight?  ---   H'm, i t  would be correct  i f  there was 

actual ly any contro l  over the t ime.  There –  there are no 25 
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t imesheets.   I 've requested t imesheets f rom the company.  So 

one of  the reasons I  cal led Shelagh Goodwin was to  ver i fy the 

exact  working hours.   So I 've got  no actual  way of  proving,  

h 'm...   But i t 's  –  i t 's  s imi lar to.. .  

 But let 's say on 23 May.  ---   Right .  5 

 I t 's  5:30,  wi l l  you –  is  that  r ight?  ---   H'm, I  would –  I  

would agree 5:30 a.m. instead of  5:00 a.m.  

 Okay, a lr ight .   Now you say th is is every Tuesday.  ---   

Yes.  

 When did i t  f i rst  start?  ---   On th is,  what is the date 10 

here?  23 r d  of  May.  

 So 23 May was the f i rst  occasion?  ---   Right  and the 

second occasion would have been the 30 t h .   I  d idn' t  actual ly 

arr ive on the 30 t h  and i t 's  probably one of  the reasons why I  

was –  my contract  was terminated.  15 

 Now you say probably.   Are you saying i t  was a reason 

and were you to ld that  that  was the reason or not?  ---   H'm, no 

i t  was –  i t  was the,  just  the manner in which the whole incident 

occurred,  the terminat ion.   I t  would appear that  Sedrick was 

upset that  I  hadn't  actual ly avai led myself .   So the –  i t 's  a 20 

int imidatory,  i t 's  just ,  i t 's an example of  the vict imisat ion and 

int imidat ion.  I t 's  just ,  just my t ime was just  taken wholesale.  

 Alr ight .   Then on 4.4.3.1 you say that  Mr Tal jaard made 

an appointment with you at  4:00 a.m. in the morning.   ---   H'm. 

 Now when was that?  ---   That –  that would have been.. .  25 
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 And what was i t  about?  ---   That was the 21 s t  of  May. 

 21 May.  ---   He expected me to be there to monitor the 

dispatch of  the and receipt  of  the periodicals.   As –  as a 

member of  product ion I  would have actual ly been –  i t  would 

have been immediately under my, you know, purview that ,  the 5 

dispatch of  the newspapers.   The workers who were working, 

they had to get  up even earl ier.   So in order for the People 's 

Post to be del ivered at  5:00,  5:00 a.m. or 5:30 someone would  

have had –  had to actual ly load a lorry and present them.  

 Now that 's 21 May?  ---   That 's the 21 s t .  10 

 We're not  ta lk ing about 23 May now, are we?  ---   Sorry.  

 Is i t  a separate,  is i t  separate or the same?  ---   I 'm 

gett ing lost .   I 'm sorry,  I 'm gett ing lost .   I 'm gett ing confused.   

The 23 r d  of  May.  I  was just  looking at  the. . .   The emai l  was 

issued on the 21 s t  of  May.  Sorry.  15 

 So the incident that  you refer to in 4.4.3.1. . .   - --   Right .  

 When is that  incident?  ---   The 23 r d  of  May.  

 Alr ight ,  4.4.3:  

“Requir ing appl icant to work 14-hour days.”  

Do you want to set  the facts out  on that?  ---   Right .   The 20 

product ion cycle was Fr iday unt i l  Monday.  The –  the 

newspaper was pr inted Monday evening.   Tuesday morning i t  

would have been distr ibuted.  The working hours on the Fr iday 

and the Monday were completely,  h 'm, ja i t  was just 

impossib le.   I  was –  I  was gett ing to work at  –  at  8:00 a.m. and 25 
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leaving work at  –  at  roundabout ten.   The –  the night  before 

the –  the Monday night  was –  was impossib le.   I t  was –  i t  was 

just . . .   This is a l l  noted in my evaluation report .   I  at tempted to 

actual ly br ing up th is issue but i t  just ,  the –  the respondent 

was so intent  on bul lying me and int imidat ing me and keeping 5 

me in l ine,  essent ia l ly oppressing me as an individual that 

none of  these issues were actual ly dealt  wi th.  

 The evaluat ion report ,  what document is that?  ---   That 

is the,  in my –  in my bundle i tem 11, pages 27 to 28.  

 That 's your bundle?  ---   That 's r ight ,  appl icant 's bundle 10 

of  documents.  

 Is i t  the second or the f i rst?  ---   The f i rst  bundle.  

 I 'm af ra id I . . .   I t 's  the appl icant 's bundle of  documents?   

---   Right .  

 I 've got :   Ethical  code for reporters,  photographers and 15 

graphic art ists.   ---   Page 27. 

 Alr ight ,  okay.   You cal l  th is an evaluat ion report .   - --   

Right ,  these were my –  my notes that  I  made the –  the night 

before the evaluat ion.  

 And what,  was that  on the.. .   That 's 29 Ma y now?  The 20 

meet ing was on 30 May.  ---   Right  ja,  r ight ,  r ight .  

 And did you hand th is to them?  ---   No I  –  I  d idn't  

actual ly have the opportuni ty to do that .  They were too busy 

int imidat ing me.  

 Alr ight  so did you ra ise the issue of  the t ime, the 14... ?  25 
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Did you ra ise i t  at a l l  in  the meet ing?  ---   H'm I  at tempt. . .  

 I  see that  you ra ised i t  in your notes.  ---   Right .   Yes I . . .    

 But d id you ra ise i t  in  the meet ing?  -- -   I  at tempted to 

ra ise that ,  the issue, but  the evaluat ion meet ing got stuck on 

the Jimmy Dludlu /Robbie Jansen art ic le.   So we were ta lk ing at  5 

cross-purposes.  The only sense actual ly that  came out of  the 

meet ing was Warren Charles object ing to my manner of  my 

observance on a –  on a Fr iday evening.   He also actual ly 

started asking me st range quest ions about do I  even know 

where Manenberg is,  you know.  He started making for 10 

instance that  I  actual ly d idn' t  know what I  was ta lk ing about.  

The –  the three, the four t i t les were Landsdowne, R etreat , 

Athlone and Grassy Park edi t ions of  the People 's Post .   Each 

one of  those edit ions is in i tsel f ,  i ts own editor ia l .   There 's a –  

there 's a reporter at tached to that  t i t le .   So i t 's  four new t i t les.  15 

 Now, okay so in your earl ier evidence you said that  the 

issue that  was discussed was the layout.   ---   Right .  

 But now is i t  –  are you now saying that  i t 's  a lso,  the 

Dludlu matter was also ra ised at  that meet ing?  ---   I  –  I  ra ised 

the issue of  the Robbie Jansen/Jimmy Dludlu story.  20 

 Okay, then in 4.4.3,  you've given evidence that  that 's 

what Mr Tal jaard is a l leged to have said.   ---   Right .  

 Alr ight  and then 4.4.4?  ---   Ja: 

“Warren Charles made of fensive remarks regarding 

appl icant 's observance of  Sabbath and appl icant 's 25 
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“observance of  h is cul tural  her i tage.”  

 Well  the. . . ,  do you want to expand on that?  What 

remarks did he make?  ---   He insinuated that I  was 

contradict ing myself  as a Jew;  that  I  had no r ight  to the 

Jewish Sabbath;  that  there was no basis for anyone inferr ing 5 

that –  that  I  was Jewish or deserving;   that  I  had no r ight  to –  

that  i f  I  was Jewish,  certa in ly a good Jew wouldn' t  be seen in a 

–  a n ightclub l is tening to jazz music.  

 Okay.  Then 4.5.1 you've dealt  wi th.   That 's the two 

Dludlu art ic les.   ---   H'm. 10 

 The f i rst  one and the second one.  ---   Right .  

 Then 4.5.2,  I  th ink you've dealt  wi th that ,  you were –  that 

you were physical ly removed f rom the premises and for those 

reasons and then 4.5.3?  ---   H'm yes,  on the contractual 

issues.  I 've dealt  wi th at  length the contractual  issues in my 15 

var ious documents.   The –  and th is is a l l  actua l ly a pre –  the 

pre-tr ia l  issues actual ly summarise some of  those arguments.  

 Do you want –  shal l  we turn to the pre -tr ia l?  ---   So I 

don' t  know, then maybe we should go to the pre. . .  

 And then do i t  in  the pre -tr ia l?  ---   And then do i t  l ike 20 

that .  

 Ja a lr ight .   Turn to page 45 then.   ---   So I  appear to deal 

with the manner in which I  entered the contract  and.. .  

 Alr ight ,  let 's just go –  I  want to go through just  each of  

those.  ---   Alr ight ,  do you want to go each?  Alr ight .  25 
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 So 5.1 you've dealt  wi th.   ---   Right .  

 5.2 you haven' t  dealt  wi th.   ---   H'm, ja no there was an 

error  in  corpore ,  error  in  persona  and error  in  substantia .    

 Okay.  ---   The error in persona  is  that  they actually 

misrepresented their  re lat ionship to the TRC.  I  d idn't  actual ly 5 

know at  that  t ime which I  entered the contract  that  the 

company hadn' t  been cleared.  Had I  have known I  wouldn' t  

have entered the agreement to begin with.   There 's a 

substant ive case to be made with regard to the mis -

representat ion of  the working hours,  inc luding the obl igat ion to 10 

work on the Sabbath.  

 Just  before we go any further,  so okay. . .   How.. . ,  what 

about 5.3?  ---   H'm.. . ,  r ight .   The respondent contends that 

the contract was –  the term expired.  

 Expired.   ---   And I –  I  contest  i t .  15 

 They can ask you quest ions on that .  ---   Alr ight .  

 Alr ight  and 5.4?  I  th ink you contend that  you're 

d iscr iminated against .   ---   H'm. 

 You've indicated the conduct.   ---   Right .  

 That you cla im is d iscr iminatory.   Alr ight  5.5?  ---   Yes,  I  20 

mean th is is actual ly the crux of  the issue.  In any event, the 

contract  has a c lause with regard to the negot iat ion.  

 Alr ight ,  wi l l  you show i t  to me?  ---   H'm.. .   (W itness 

perusing document).   I 'm just  going to quick have a look at 

the. .. ,  because th is isn ' t  the actual  contract .   I 've got  to look at 25 
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the –  we can presume what was in the  contract .   I 've got  to 

look at  the –  the responses to the quest ions at  pre -t r ia l .   I 've  

got  some indicat ion as to where everyth ing is.   So th is is the 

problem.  This index to p leadings I  don' t  th ink e ven has the –  

that  document.  5 

 Well  is  i t  in your documents then?  ---   H'm.. ,  could be in 

my f i l ing pleadings.   Here we go.   I t 's  i tem 16:   Appl icant 's 

response to pre-tr ia l .   80 to 86.   Alr ight ,  i t 's  actual ly,  I  found 

the reference.  I t 's  in –  on page 88 of  the in i t ia l  i tem 

pleadings.   1.2.3: 10 

“Any negot iat ions regarding the renewal of  the contract 

. . . ( intervent ion)”  

 Just  wait ,  p lease.  Please wait  for me to f ind i t .   ---   

Sorry.  

 Page 88.. .   - --   Of the i tem pleadings.  15 

 Of your p leadings?  ---   My pleadings,  ja.  

 So what document is th is?  “Respondent 's l is t  of  

quest ions”,  yes,  where is that?  ---   H'm.. .  

 88,  yes I 've got  page 88.  ---   Right ,  point  1.2,  1.2.3:  

“Any negot iat ions regarding the renewal of  the contract 20 

wi l l  take place with in the last  two mon ths of  i ts durat ion.  

I f  not  renewed, the contract  of  employment would 

terminate on 30 June 2006 in terms of  c lause 3.3 

thereof. ”  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Sorry M'Lord,  I 'm lost .    25 
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COURT:  Wel l . . .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  What document –  is  th is something that 's 

now in what 's in the addit ional documents?  

COURT:  Wel l ,  remember r ight  at the very beginning the 

appl icant the idea was that  a l l  documents in your revised 5 

bundle would include al l  documents that  he had put. . .       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes they should be there,  but  i t  may  wel l  

be in what is now cal led the “Addit ional documents ” .   - --   Oh, I  

found –  I  found i t .  

COURT:  Are these cal led the. ..?  ---   I  found i t  in  the –  th is 10 

contract  that 's purport ing to the contract .    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ah, i t 's  the respondent 's bundle of  

documents.   ---   3.3.   I  just  couldn' t  f ind the. ..  

COURT:  No, let 's not  get  confused now.   Just  let  me just  st ick 

with th is.   The document that  he read out was the respondent 's 15 

l ist  of  quest ions for pre -tr ia l  conference.  I t 's  page 87 of  h is 

indexed pages and i t 's  dated...   - --   Sorry,  page 88.  

 I t 's  dated 14 October 2008.  So i t  emanates f rom the 

respondent 's at torneys and what is required to be admit ted in 

paragraph 1.2.3 is that i t  was a term of  the agreement that :  20 

“Any negot iat ions regarding the renewal o f  the contract 

wi l l  take place with in the last  two months of  i ts durat ion.  

I f  not  renewed, the contract  of  employment would 

terminate on 30 June 2006 in terms of  c lause 3.3 

thereof. ”        25 
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MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes M'Lord,  that 's at  page 24 of  the 

addit ional document sect ion on the pleadings f i le .  

COURT:  24.   Ah, ah okay.   Alr ight ,  have you got that?  I t 's  the 

same document.   ---   Right ,  r ight .  

 And i t  has been suppl ied.  ---   Yes.  5 

 So i t 's  in the addit ional. . .   - --   I t 's  point  3.3.  

 I t 's  the addit ional documen ts,  index to addit ional 

documents.   ---   Right ,  i t 's  point  3.3 of  page 6.  

 Of  what?  ---   Of  the current  p leadings.   Sorry index,  

index to respondent 's bundle of  documents.  10 

 Page 6?  ---   H'm. 

 And where?  ---   I tem 3.3.  

 3.3?  ---   Yes.  

 On page 10?  ---   Sorry,  page 6 of  the respondent's 

bundle of  documents.  15 

 Okay, wel l  so that  was in the agreement.   ---   Right .  

 And you agree that  that  was in the agreement?  ---   I  

agree with that .  

 Okay.  ---   The issue is the negot iat ion of  terminat ion of  

the contract.  20 

 Well  now you say here in 5.5:  

“The appl icant contends the respondent denied him the 

opportuni ty to renegot iate h is contract  with the 

respondent.”  

What are the facts that  you base that  conclusion on?   ---   25 
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H'm.. .   I  was denied. . . ,  what?  (W itness chuckles ). 

 I t  was never ra ised?  ---   I t  was.. .   I  hadn' t  –  I  wasn' t  

even given the opportuni ty to –  to even look at my contract .  

 Well ,  what are you saying?  That they didn' t  give you the 

opportuni ty or that you didn' t  –  you didn' t  know what was in the 5 

contract?   ---   What I 'm, no what I 'm –  what I 'm al leging is i t 's  

a fa i lure to renew a contract  of  employment for a  prohib i ted 

reason, the reason being discr iminat ion  and there 's 

considerable case –  case law.  

 This is not  an argument now.  I  just  want to know the 10 

facts upon which.. ,  your evidence as to why you say i t  was 

denied.   ---   Right .  I t  –  i t . . .  

 I t  was never ra ised with you.  Is that what you're saying?  

---   I t  –  i t  was –  i t  was uni lateral ly terminated.  There was 

absolute ly no attempt to engage in any dis cussion. 15 

 5.6,  that 's sect ion 6 of  the Employment Equity Act .   I 'm 

st i l l  on page 47 of  the index pleadings and I 'm deal ing with the 

matters in d ispute,  that  you'd put  in d ispute.   ---   Sorry,  47.  

Oh r ight .   So I  –  I 'm contending:  

“The respondent contravened the provis ions of  section 20 

6.. . ”  

 Yes.  

“ . . .of  the Employment Equity Act  55 of  1 988(?) as 

amended.”  

 Alr ight ,  ja and as I  understand your p leadings,  that 's for 25 
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re l igious and pol i t ical  reasons.  ---   Precisely.  

 5.7.1,  that  you've dealt  wi th in evidence.   ---   H'm. 

 Are you.. .?  That 's the system policy.   I t 's  real ly the 

wording that  comes out of  your statement of  c la im.  ---   Right .  

 Is there anything addit ional in 5.7.1 you want to ra ise?    5 

---   Just  the issue of  the demographics.  

 Yes you have ra ised that .  ---   I  don' t  bel ieve I 've –  I 've 

ra ised the issues, the nature of  the discussions and the 

problems at the company.  

 Okay.  Do you want to do that?  ---   Right .   H'm, I  –  I  was 10 

party to a –  a number of   d iscussions when the issue of  the 

democraphic –  demographics of  the target market arose and 

that  there was a general  fa i lure to abide by the terms of  the 

equal i ty c lause in the Const i tut ion and various other 

documents.   The target market was consistent ly referred to in 15 

terms of  the old apartheid categori es.   So I  actual ly took –  

take except ion to the manner in which the respondent has –  

has ra ised the demographics issue in –  a lso as part  of  the –  

their  denial  that  I  have a r ight  to –  to. . . ,  you know my r ights as 

a journal ist .   They bel ieve that  they can d ictate to me the –  not 20 

only the content of  –  of  my wri t ing but  who i t  is  that  I  wri te 

about,  what their  opin ions are and so on.  I t 's  a systemat ic 

abuse.  I t 's  –  i t 's  part  and parcel  of  their  pol ic ies which have a 

chain of  abuse going al l  the way back to –  to H F Verwoerd,  D 

F Malan, P W Botha and Arr ie Rossouw, current  edi tor of  Die 25 
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Burger.  

 5.7.2,  you've dealt  wi th that .   ---   Right .  

 Then 5.7.3.1 you –  th is is one of  the issues ,  i f  I  

remember correct ly ,  that  th is was a –  there 's a d if ference of  

wording but again the issue here.. .   And th is is again the 5 

requirement that  you work on Fr iday.   ---   Right .  

 5.7.3.2 you al lege:  

“The respondent was aware that  the appl icant was 

Jewish and that  a seven-day workweek would prevent 

h im f rom observing Shabbat . ”  10 

---   Right .    

 Is there anything further you want to say on that?  ---   

H'm, wel l  th is is the ( indist inct)  where I  would need to call  

Shelagh Goodwin with regard to my –  my quest ion as to is i t  a 

reasonable.. . ,  in  terms of  Human Resources.   I 'd  a lso l ike to 15 

enter into evidence some of  the other statements in my 

response to the current  amendment,  their . . .   And I 'd l ike to –  to 

cal l  an expert  witness to –  to determine what is considered the 

usual pract ice in terms of  Judaism or what –  what laws am I 

expected to abide by,  what exact ly is the –  the Sabbath,  what 20 

leeway is given to me.  There seems to be a general  at tack 

against  my person since I  –  the respondent maintains that 

s ince I  agreed to work on a Saturday morning I  shouldn' t  be 

ent i t led to Shabbat .  

 Well ,  le t 's see what 's asked.   Then the harassment 25 
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you've dealt  wi th in detai l .   - --   Right .  

 We've gone through th is qui te careful ly and the same 

with Warren Charles.   I t 's  5.7.3.4.  and then 5.7.3.5 that  you've 

been forced to work seven days per week.   Again you restate 

the fact  that  “The respondent was aware that  the appl icant was 5 

Jewish”,  that  you were Jewish.   Right ,  5.7.3.7 you've dealt  wi th 

the reasons for your art ic les not being accepted and you dealt 

wi th your d ismissal hearing.   Now in 5.7.3.9 you enjoyed a 

legi t imate expectat ion.   ---   Right ,  th is is an interest ing issue 

because Auf  der Heyde is a case law with. . . ,  goes into that .  10 

 Ja please let 's not deal with case law.  ---   Sorry.  

 You can address me on the law.  I  just  want to know on 

what factual  basis. . .   - --   Right .  

 . . .do you conclude that  you had a legi t imate expectat ion.  

---   There must be facts to demonstrate i t .   You must te l l  me , 15 

you must te l l  the Court  what those facts are.   ---   H'm.. . ,  

legi t imate expectat ion since I  –  I  was employed.  There was a 

–  a taci t  agreement with the Human Resources department 

which i t  can be inferred.   There was actual ly a promise to 

renew my contract.  20 

 Who made the promise?  ---   Warren Charles.  

 When?  ---   W ith in –  that  was in the f i rst  –  f i rst week.   

There were var ious reassurances that  were given to me.  In 

fact  those reassurances were also given to me by Dean.  I t  

was the sort  of  cherry that  was held out .  25 
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 So and the promise made by Annel ien Dean, can you be 

more specif ic?  And can we.. .   - --   I t  was one of  the reasons 

why I  agreed to provide the People 's Post  with –  wi th art ic les 

in the f i rst  p lace.   I  –  I  was to ld that I  would get  a bet ter 

contract .  5 

 So real ly there were two occasions by two di f ferent 

people?  ---   Right.  

 You say they promised you a renewal of  contract?  ---   

Right  and h 'm, ja.  Ja Sedrick Tal jaard was just  h is abusive. . .   

He was, i f  I  –  i f  I  actual ly even discuss my contract  he's going 10 

to f i re me. 

 And 5.7.3.11?  ---   H'm, i t  says:  

“Where the applicant establ ishes an obl igat ion to 

negot iate the  renewal of  h is employment contract ,  where 

the respondent fa i led to comply with any of  i ts 15 

obl igat ions in terms of  the negot iat ion,  renewal of  the 

employment contract  and whether(?) any of  the reasons 

for that  a l leged non-compl iance were arbi t rary.”   

So that 's, I  take i t  I 've been requested to prove th is.   Is that 

t rue? 20 

 No I  th ink i t 's  for the respondent to prove.  ---   Oh 

alr ight .  

 Is there anything else that  you th ink you need to say or 

cover that  you haven' t  a lready covered?  You wi l l  have an 

opportuni ty af ter cross-examinat ion to supplement what you25 
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say,  as long as i t 's  –  remains with in the ambit  of  the cross -

examinat ion.   I  might ask further quest ions and Mr Kahanovitz 

would then be enti t led to cross -examine you on the quest ions 

that  I  ask.   But you wi l l  have plenty of  opportuni ty to 

supplement what you have to say.   ---   Good. 5 

 Mr Kahanovitz.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M'Lord.   M'Lord,  insofar as i t 's  

re levant,  that  is the clause.. .   The last  one that  you referred 

to,  that  is the clause that  the appl ic ant ment ions at  page 56 

where he had a di f ference of  opin ion as to how i t  should be 10 

phrased. 

COURT:  Phrased yes.   Thanks for bringing i t  to. . .    

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ:  Mr Lewis.   -- -   

Right .  

 Who is the edi tor of  Die Burger?   - --   The current  edi tor I  15 

bel ieve is Arr ie Rossouw.  

 Well ,  can I  put  i t  to you that . . .   - --   I t  might be someone 

else. 

 . . . that  he's not  the edi tor of  Die Burger.   ---   No longer? 

 Have you heard of  Henry Jef f reys?  ---   H'm no.   20 

 Do you know what racia l  group he belongs to?  ---   Got 

no idea. 

 Well ,  I  just  want to put  i t  to you and you can' t  d ispute 

th is,  the current edi tor of  Die Burger  is Henry Jef f reys and in 

using the old categorisat ions he would be a so-cal led coloured 25 
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person.   Right ,  let 's –  the legal phraseology that  you use in 

your documents and the Lat in phrases and the references to 

cases and so on, where does that  come f rom?  Is i t  based on 

your own research?  ---   No. 

 Or you received advice or where does i t  come f rom?  ---   5 

H'm, I 've –  I 've studied at length  at the Labour  Law Library at  

Community House and I 've received.. .  

 Excuse me, the Labour Law.. .?  ---   The Labour Law 

Library.  

 Yes.   - --   I 've received assistance f rom ILRIG, the Labour 10 

Research Unit.  

 Yes.   -- -   The references are to Labour Law reports.   I  

th ink they are referenced correct ly,  the –  wherever I  have 

referenced. 

 Now you have a universi ty degree.  ---   Indeed. 15 

 What degree is that?  ---   I  have a Bachelor of  Arts f rom 

the Universi ty of  Cape Town.  

 Alr ight  and I  th ink in summary you ment ione d that  you 

br ief ly studied Law?  - --   Post  –  passed Roman Law I.   I  

haven' t  passed my Private Law exam.  20 

 And somewhere else you also I  th ink say that  you have 

seen in excess of  40 lawyers who you tr ied to get  to take on 

your case.  -- -   H'm, I 've been f rom pi l lar to post.  Most 

individuals require some kind of  a deposit  of  –  of  money.  

 But what we do know is that lawyers who have 25 
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represented you, then on.. .   We know Mr Michael Ba ynham(?) 

At torneys,  someone by the name of  Mr Ste vens(?) was 

represent ing you for a t ime because he's the person who 

signed the pleadings on your behalf ,  correct?  ---   Right ,  r ight .  

 There 's a lso reference in one of  your documents to an 5 

Adv Caiger,  Andrew Caiger.   ---   Right .  

 Where does he f i t  in?   ---   H'm, th is is qui te b izarre.   

The.. .   Dale Stevens, af ter the documents were actual ly f i led 

at  Labour Court  I  was taken to meet Adv Caiger.   Adv Caiger 

was presumably asked to render an opin ion as to the meri ts of  10 

the case for the purposes of  an insurance cla im.  The only –  

the only th ing I can see in Adv Caiger 's opin ion was that  he 

thought my prospects were better with regards to a d ismissal 

case than to a d iscr iminat ion case under the Employment 

Equity Act .  15 

 Alr ight ,  okay.   I  should not  actual ly –  I  d idn' t  want to ask 

you about what h is opin ion was, but  I  see at  some or other 

stage there 's correspondence where you point  out  that  your 

insurance contract  was –  that  provided you with legal 

assistance was cancel led and I  think you referred them to 20 

some or other body.  Just  te l l  us about  that .   ---   I t  was 

referred to the of f ice of  the short - term ombudsperson for 

the. .. ,  sorry,  short - term insurance ombud.  They came to the 

start l ing conclusion that  s ince the. . . ,  that  even though the case 

was f ramed with in the terms of  the Labour Law, that  the cause 25 
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had ar isen f rom an act  of  defamat ion and therefore the insurer 

wasn' t  obl iged to render services.   So the fact  that  I  was 

defamed in the process of  being f i red had absolute ly –  i t  was 

actual ly prejudic ial  to my prospects.  I f  I 'd  been f i red with out 

any words being said ,  without there being any –  any conf l ict  I  5 

would have been in a bet ter posi t ion.  

 But we do know that  LegalW ise in fact  represented  you, 

page 41 of  the respondent 's bundle.   I t 's  a let ter sent by 

LegalW ise on your behalf .   - --   Right .  

 Addressed to Mr Warren Charles, dated 6 June 2006.  ---   10 

Right.  

 Are you there?  ---  Sorry,  what page? 

 Page 41 of  the respondent 's bundle.   ---   41.   Right  there 

were –  there were also several  other let ters.  

 No but th is is a let ter which says that  m oney is being 15 

demanded on your behalf .   - --   Right .  

 Because i t  is ,  and I  quote:  

“ I t  is  a wel l -known fact  that  our member is not an 

Orthodox Jew.. . ”  

I  assume that 's a mistake?  ---   I  –  I  bel ieve i t 's  an error.  20 

 Yes and what i t  should read is:  

“ I t  is  a wel l -known fact  that  our member is an Orthodox 

Jew.. . ”  

- --   H'm.  

“ . . .hence he observed the Sabbath f rom Friday evening 25 
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“sunset unt i l  Saturday evening sunset,  but  was 

demanded by Mr Sedrick Tal jaard to work on th is holy 

period.   Our pol icy holder 's contract  was terminated by 

Media 24 before complet ion thereof .”  

And then the amount of  one month 's salary is demanded, 5 

correct?  ---   H'm, that 's correct .  

 Alr ight .   ---   There were –  there is a lso correspondence 

request ing the contract  of  employment which was not. . . ,  there 

was no –  i t  wasn' t  tendered.  I t  wasn' t  –  I  d idn' t  have –  st i l l ,  

st i l l  wait ing to receive that  contract.  10 

 Then please go to page 48 in the same bundle.   I t 's a 

document dated 5 July 2006.  ---   Right .   

 Is that  your s ignature?  ---   Indeed i t  is .  

 And i t  says –  i t 's on a LegalW ise letterhead and I  assume 

that  means that  LegalW ise drew up th is document.   ---   Right , 15 

i t 's  –  i t 's  a document without prejudice for the receipt  of  a 

salary without any reference to any other document.  

 But i t  says:  

“ I ,  D Lewis,  hereby conf i rm that  I  received my 

outstanding salary f rom Media 24 as a fu l l  and f inal  20 

sett lement.”  

- --   In fu l l  and f inal set t lement of  what?  In fu l l . . .   

 Now what are we supposed to make of  that  document?    

---   That 's,  I  was actual ly forced into  th is posi t ion because the 

–  I  d idn' t  have access to an –  a proper at torney.   There was no 25 



MR KAHANOVITZ 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

77 D R LEWIS 

 

04.11.2009/14:03-16:07/EdB  /…  

contract .   There 's an inval id contract and how am I  expected to 

–  to l ive?  I  need my salary.   You –  I  was paid a salary in  

set t lement of  what?  

 Well ,  you have already made i t  c lear that  you are a man 

of  pr incip le who is not  int imidated by authori ty.   When you 5 

have r ights to stand up for,  you stand up for that .   ---   Right ,  

but  I  –  I  don' t  have the abi l i ty to wri te legal let ters of  demand.  

I  don' t  have that.   I  –  I 'm not a pract ic ing at torney.  

 Yes but th is let ter is not  part icular ly compl icated.  I t  

says:  10 

“ I ,  D Lewis,  hereby conf i rm that  I  received my 

outstanding salary f rom Media 24 as a fu l l  and f inal  

sett lement.”  

- --   Of  what? 

 Yes wel l  of  what?  The only way to a nswer that  quest ion 15 

is to look at  the let ter of  demand which gave r ise to the 

set t lement.   ---   There –  there 's a lso a letter of  demand for a 

contract  of  employment.  

 Well  that  d ispute would,  I  bel ieve,  be set t led on the basis 

set  out  in the let ter at  page  48.  ---   Well . . .  20 

 I  don' t  th ink i t 's  part icular ly compl icated what is. . .   What 

the let ter c lear ly says is:   Our c l ient,  Mr Constable,  says that 

h is c l ient  has been discr iminated against .   He has got a three -

month contract .   He only received two months.   You must  pay 

a further and if  you don't  do so legal act ion wi l l  be inst i tuted.   25 
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Correct?  Got anything wrong?  ---   (No audible answer).  

 Page 41.   ---   I t  says there “without prejudice”.  

 Yes,  but  a l l  le t ters  which const i tute an of fer to sett le or 

deal wi th negot iat ions about set t lement are marked “without 

prejudice”.   ---   My r ights,  my r ights were reserved.  5 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  let  Mr Kahanovitz ask the quest ion and 

then you can respond.  ---   Sorry.         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  You see, Mr Lewis,  the way th is no rmal ly 

works is that  the one party's legal representat ive wri tes a 

le t ter,  r ight ,  and they may add on i t  “without prejudice”,  but  i f  10 

an agreement is reached which actual ly set t les the case, then 

that  gives r ise to  an enforceable contract .   ---   Sorry Mr 

Kahanovitz,  the –  the letter says “without prejudice”.  I f  your 

company had seized i ts prejudice against  me I  would have 

been able to seek employment with the company.   I  –  I 'm stuck 15 

in a legal quagmire as a result  of  th is –  th is whole saga.  So –  

so I 'm al lowed to –  to apply for –  for employment at  any one of  

the 250 jobs which I  actual ly am capable of  –  of  doing. 

 Can I  get  back to.. .?  ---   I t  says there without prejudice 

your company is expected not to d iscr iminate against  me.  20 

Your company hasn' t  ceased to d iscr iminate against  me.  I t 's 

on-going discr iminat ion.   I 'm –  I 'm here to protect  my –  my 

r ights.   The Court is obl iged to protect  my r ights to negot iate 

and –  and to do so without prejudice.  

 Well  s imply put ,  your –  the fact  that you took th is money 25 
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and signed the document set t led the dispute.   There isn ' t  a 

d ispute.   ---   No, the –  the –  i t  set t led the issue of  the –  of  the 

overt ime.   There was an overt ime amount.  

 Oh, but  there 's no reference made to that  in the let ter on 

page 41.  ---   No, there were –  there were monies outstanding 5 

and –  and overt ime was set t led.   I  was –  I  was paid an amount.  

My r ights were reserved.  

 But the let ter speaks for i tself :  

“Our pol icy holder  instructs us to request you to 

re imburse our member for the one month 's outstan ding 10 

salary.”  

And then the answer  s igned by you is:  

“ I ,  D Lewis,  hereby conf i rm that  I  received my 

outstanding salary f rom Media 24 as a fu l l  and f inal  

sett lement.”  15 

What 's d if f icul t  to understand?  ---   This is a set t lement of  

what? 

 Sett lement of  the cla im which you . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   

There is no val id . . .  

COURT:  Please, p lease.  ---   There isn ' t  a val id document 20 

between –  between me and the company.   You have tendered 

a f raudulent  document.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  What document is f raudulent?  ---   Show 

me the contract .  

 What has th is got  to do with the contract?  ---   Show me 25 
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the contract of  –  that  I  s igned.  I  –  I  haven' t  seen that contract .  

 What would that  have to do with the quest ion of  whether 

or not  there was a set t lement?  ---   We asked –  show me the 

contract  that  –  that  I  supposedly set t led.   I  haven' t  set t led 

anything.   Where's –  where's the –  where's my contract?  5 

 Well  Mr Lewis,  on your own version what is in that 

contract would be ent i re ly i rre levant because on your own 

version the contract  was inval id.   I t  has no legal force in 

ef fect.   ---   I t  has no, r ight ,  i t  has no legal force and ef fect.   I  

have a. . .  10 

 So what d if ference would i t  make if  I  had to show you the 

contract?  ---   The.. .   Wel l the –  precisely.   The –  the –  I  have 

an employment relat ionship.   The –  the contract  has –  has 

essent ia l ly fa l len away.  There is no contract .   I t 's  a –  i t 's  a 

inval id terminat ion of  an inval id contract .  15 

 Alr ight  wel l ,  le t 's move then on, but I 'm going to argue at 

the end of  th is case that  any disputes that  exi sted about the 

ending of  the re lat ionship,  employment re lat ionship between 

the two part ies was in fact  set t led when you accepted an 

amount of  money, fu l l  and f inal  sett lement of  that  d ispute and 20 

you wi l l  no doubt argue di f ferent ly.   Do you want to comment?   

---   H'm.. .   I t 's  a fai lure to –  to renew a contract  of  employment 

for a prohib i ted reason.  

 Alr ight .   ---   The –  the contract  essent ia l ly has gone up in 

smoke.  (W itness chuckles).   25 
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 Maybe whi le we're  busy with that  issue, one of  the th ings 

you've now said to  the Judge was that  you.. . ,  one of  the th ings 

you cla im is that . . .   Let  me get your  language.  You said that 

the employer was obl iged to negot iate a new contract  with you.  

---   Or to provide val id reasons for d ismissal.  5 

 No, that 's not  what you said.   ---   Al l  I 'm saying is –  is  i t 's  

just  on a –  on a basis of  what would be lawful .   One would 

have expected reasons for,  bona f ide  reasons for terminat ion 

or d ismissal.   I  haven' t  received anything in wri t ing.  

 No I 'm not –  we're ta lk ing at  cross-purposes.  No, I 'm not 10 

ta lk ing about anything to do with terminat ion.   There 's a point 

that  you made where you referred the Judge to paragraph 3.3 

of  the contract  of  employment at  page.. .   I t 's  respondent 's 

bundle page 6.   The clause reads as fo l lows:  

“Any negot ia t ions regarding the renewal of  the contract 15 

wi l l  take place with in the last  two months of  i ts durat ion.  

Should th is contract  not  be renewed, terminat ion wi l l  take 

place at  the expiry date ment ioned in paragraph 3.1.”  

- --   Right .  

 And if  I  understood your argument,  you say th is c lause 20 

was breached.  ---   Precisely.  

 But now how can one –  but  on the other hand you say 

that  th is contract  was inval id.   ---   Well  you see is  that  why –  

why we need a judge, is the –  the case law determines 

specif ical ly in Auf  der Heyde that  notwithstanding the contents 25 
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of  the contract  a reasonable expectat ion of  renewal exists.  

 No, no we're not  ta lk ing about reasonable expectat ions of  

renewal at  the moment.   We're ta lk ing about whether or not  my 

cl ient  breached the terms of  th is contract .   I 'm putt ing to you 

what is actual ly a fa ir ly s imple proposit ion.   ---   Right .   There 5 

should have been a clause in the contract essent ia l ly set t ing 

out  the manner of  the terminat ion.  

 No, we're not  ta lk ing about terminat ion.   ---   I t 's  a 

prejudic ia l . . .  

 We're ta lk ing about renewal.   ---   Right  i f  –  i f  th is was 10 

actual ly a bona f ide  contract ,  which i t 's  not  and th is –  we're 

going to presume that  th is is just  a facsimi le of  the document.  

So we're ta lk ing real ly hypothet ical ly here.   This is an abstr act 

argument that we're using.   Hypothet ical ly speaking,  i f  I  had 

been given the r ight  to amend my contract ,  which I  c lear ly 15 

wasn' t ,  in  fact  my request for an amendment of  my contract 

resul ted in a more deleter ious si tuat ion where. . . ,  c lear ly 

prejudic ia l .   I f  –  i f  there had been an amendment I  would have 

suggested an amendment 3.4,  set t ing out  the manner of  the 

terminat ion which bona f ide  reasons would have to be suppl ied 20 

by the respondent.  

 Alr ight  so you're not  a l leging anymore that the 

respondent breached clause 3.3 of  the contract?  ---   H'm...   

(W itness chuckles).   You're ta lk ing a completely abstract .   I t 's 

a. . . ,  completely hypothet ical .   I 'm al leging the breach of  a 25 
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document.   The document is not  even a bona f ide  document.  

You haven' t  managed to show that  document in court .   This is  

a reasonable facsimi le.   So if  you want to say yes,  there was a 

reasonable breach –  there 's a breach of  the reasonable 

facsimi le of  a document,  then what are you gett ing at?   5 

 I t 's  not  what I 'm gett ing at .   The Judge aske d you what 

was the point  that  you wished to make in your p leadings where 

you said. . .   I ' l l  read you the sentence in your –  in  the 

statement of  c la im.  ---   Right .  

 Paragraph 4.5.3: 10 

“Respondent fa i led to comply with i ts obl igat ions in terms 

of  the employment contract  despite a legi t imate 

expectat ion on the appl icant 's part that  same would be 

removed.”  

And then you were asked to expla in  what you meant by that.    15 

---   Right .  

 And then you referred us to c lause 3.3 of  the contract .    

- --   Wel l  I 've a lso pointed to Auf  der Heyde. 

 Alr ight .   For  what i t 's  worth I  wi l l  put  to you that  you 

haven' t  produced any evidence to show that  c lause 3.3 of  the 20 

contract was breached and to the extent  that  you're c la iming 

that  i t  was breached, i t  is  in conf l ict  wi th your asser t ion that 

th is contract  is inval id.   Your comment?  ---   You're ent i t led to 

your opin ion.  

 Alr ight ,  then just  so that  I  can understand your 25 
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content ion that  th is contract  is a f raud, you recognise that 's 

strong language?  I t  means that  what you're accusing my cl ient  

of  doing for purposes of  th is t r ia l . . .   - --   Right .   Right .   

 . . . is  invent ing. . .   ---   Yes.  

 . . .a document and fa ls ifying your s ignature?  ---   5 

Precisely,  forgery –  forging,  ut ter ing,  fa ls ifying,  at taching my 

signature to a document which I  d idn' t  s ign.  

 I f  your content ion was to –  can you expla in how would i t  

actual ly help their  case to do that?  ---   H'm, one can presume 

any manner of  reasons.  You –  you're desperately t ry ing to 10 

demonstrate the bona f ides  of  your c l ient  where in fact  there 's 

an issue of  malevolence.   

 No, let 's just  . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   But the –  the other 

document,  the other document,  i f  i t  was actual ly shown in 

court ,  would c learly be evidence of  the malevolent nature of  15 

the int imidat ion and the pol icy of  d iscr iminat ion at  the 

company.  

 Just  let 's st ick with the –  le t 's assume for sake of  

d iscussion that  th is document that  has been placed before the 

Court  is a f raudulent  document  and let 's assume for sake of  20 

discussion that  there is another d if ferent  document e lsewhere.  

Logical ly we would produce a f raudulent  document because by 

using that  document we would advantage our case.  I  mean 

otherwise there 's no point in going of f  and . . . ( intervent ion)  ---  

Yes,  unless the contents of  that  document was so beyond the 25 
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pale that  actual ly the –  your –  your c l ient  sees,  perceives th is  

document to be the more t rue,  you know.. .   I t 's  between –  i t 's 

between your c l ient  and –  and his –  and his creator,  not  –  I 'm 

not God. 

 How does th is –  can you show me anything in th is 5 

document that  helps my cl ient 's case?  Any.. .?  ---   Anything.  

 Anything in here that  would have made someone go to 

the extraordinary length of  taking the r isk of  put t ing a 

f raudulent  contract  in f ront  of  the court?  ---   Right ,  yes.  

Precisely because the work,  in th is docum ent i t  says in –  in  –  10 

on page 7 number 7:   Working hours.  

“Working week wi l l  be f rom Monday to Fr iday.”  

Yes.   ---   And then periods refer to. . .  I t 's  an,  sorry:   

“Employee's normal working hours wi l l  be eight  hours a 

day. ”  15 

 Yes.  - --   So the –  your c l ient  would be in breach of  th is 

document.  

 Yes.   ---   Right? 

 Yes.   -- -   I t 's  –  i t 's  a fact. . . ,  i t 's  a mater ia l  fact  before the 

Court  that  the –  that  your c l ient  is in –  in  fact  in breach of  th is 20 

document,  i f  i t  were in fact  a legi t imate document,  that  I  –  that 

you're not  contest ing that  I  worked a seven -day week for four, 

in fact  14 days without a break.  

 But Mr Lewis,  th is case isn ' t  about whether you worked 

overt ime and if  you worked overt ime, how much extra money 25 
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my cl ient  should or should not have paid you.  ---   Right  i t 's . . .  

 Why would we actual ly. . .?  Are you seriously suggest ing 

that  paragraph 7.1 of  the contract  is a f raud?  ---   No, I 'm 

saying is that  i f  th is was a legi t imate contract ,  i f  th is in fact 

was not a facsimi le of  a document which –  which exis ts,  your –  5 

your c l ient  would be in breach of  this document.   I  th ink your 

c l ient  fears for some reason that  introducing the other 

document puts h im at  some kind of  a d isadvantage.  I t  would –  

because of  the issue of  the Sabbath.  

 But Mr Lewis,  the argument  you've just  put  up is sel f -10 

destruct ive because what you've now pointed out is that  we've 

put up a f raudulent  document which has resulted in ourselves 

shoot ing ourselves in the foot .   ---   Right .  

 Because we now concede that  you worked an eight -hour 

day.   ---   No, you're conceding I  worked a –  a 14-day week.  15 

 Yes but on your version now we put a contract  in f ront of  

the Court  that  hurts us because i t 's  so obvious that we've 

breached i t .   Why.. .?  ---   Why would you do such a th ing?   

 Yes,  why would we do such a th ing?  Can you th ink of  a 

reason?  ---   Honest ly I  would love to know.  I 'd  love to cross -20 

 quest ion Sedrick Tal jaard  and Warren, Warren Charles 

and the Human Resources person.  We could f ind out .  

 This, th is s ignature at page 15, is i t  your s ignatur e?  ---   

H'm, i t  appears to be my signature here.  

 Yes.   ---   So, so. . .  25 
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 Well  i t  does appear to me –  are you suggest ing that 

someone has fa ls if ied your s ignature or is i t  your s ignature?    

---  No, no th is is  –  th is is my mark.  

 Now were you present when the part ies s igned th is 

contract?  I  take i t  you must have been because that 's your 5 

s ignature.   ---   I  was present when the part ies s igned the last 

page. 

 Yes.   ---   Page 15.   When page 15 was signed I was 

present.   I  can' t  vouch the same for the other page s.  There 's 

a ser ious oversight .  10 

 What 's a ser ious oversight?  ---   Wel l ,  I  would expect that 

for a bona f ide  document there would –  one would have to 

countersign,  in i t ia l the other pages.   I 've never –  I 've never 

seen a contract  in which that hasn' t  been done.  I  –  I  would 

presume that  –  that  the Court  would be able to assist  me in –  15 

in determining what a val id contract  is or is not.  

 So why is i t  important to your case to say that  the 

contract  is inval id?  ---   H'm i t 's . . .  

 How does i t  help your case?  ---   I t 's  a mater ia l  –  i t 's  

mater ia l  evidence before the Court as to the discr iminat ion 20 

that  occurred.  

 You've lost  me.  ---   I t 's  just  in the manner i t 's . . .   Hey?  

 You've lost  me.  ---   This is.. .  

 I f  th is contract is inval id. . .   - --   Right .  

 How does i t  he lp your c la im of  d iscriminat ion?  ---   Wel l ,  25 
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f i rst  of  a l l  your –  your –  my –  your at tack against  my grounds 

kind of  fa l ls f lat ,  doesn' t  i t?  

 Well ,  what at tack against  which grounds?  ---   (No 

audible answer).  

 The respondent 's defence is not  based on the t erms of  5 

the contract.   ---   You're –  you're r ight .  

 So the respondent doesn' t  . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Your –  

your defence up unt i l  today,  wel l ,  t i l l  yesterday morning was 

based on the fact  that  I 'm not a Jew.  

 What has that  got  to do with the contract?  ---   H'm, you 10 

were contest ing that  i f  I  had signed a contract  where I worked 

on Friday night  for instance, that  I  wouldn' t  be able to c la im 

discr iminat ion based upon my Jewish ident i ty.  

 Look Mr Lewis,  can you read what the respondent had to 

say about the problems with what is stated in the wri t ten 15 

contract?  Go to page 58 of  the pleadings f i le.   ---   Right .  

 Let 's start  paragraph 16:  

“Pr ior to h is appointment appl icant was interviewed by 

the edi tor,  Annel ien Dean, HR manager Warren Charles, 

the publ isher Sed r ick Tal jaard.”  20 

So far so good, you don' t  d ispute that?   ---   H'm, I  –  I  was 

interviewed, ja.  

 Excuse me?  ---   I  was interviewed by those people at  my 

appointment.   

 Yes okay and I  take i t  that  you discussed what the 25 
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product ion run. ..?  ---   No you see, th is is the problem, is –  is  

that  there was no discussion.   I  –  I  jo ined the company under 

the assumpt ion that  i t  was a Monday to Fr iday.   This is 

completely incorrect .   There was a uni lateral  change to the 

terms and –  terms and condit ions of  the contract  a t  a meet ing.  5 

I  can give you the date.  

 When.. .?  Wel l  you're saying there 's no discussion 

whatsoever that  ever took place about the day on which the 

newspaper was going to. . .?  ---   H'm, I  was under the 

assumpt ion that  i t  was a Monday to Fr iday.  10 

 No, you' re not  answering my quest ion.   ---   Sorry,  there 

was no discussion as to the. . .  

 What day of  the week was the newspaper going to come 

out on?  ---   I  –  I  started working on a Monday and h 'm, I  was 

given Wednesday af ternoon of f  and worked unt i l  Fr iday,  Fr id ay 15 

af ternoon.  Ja,  I . . .  

 No, you're  not ,  you're st i l l  not  answering the quest ion.     

- --   I t  was a f ive-day week.   

 Well ,  le t 's ask which days of ,  yes,  which days of  the 

week were you supposed to work on?  Because 20 

. . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Monday, r ight  Monday,  Tuesday, 

Wednesday, Thursday and Friday.  

 No.. .   Because you would know f rom working on 

newspapers that obviously you need to ta i lor your working 

hours in re lat ion to publ icat ion.   ---   Oh th is is an interest ing. . .   25 
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I 've –  I  am aware of  these arguments .   I  d idn' t  count. . .  

 No, i t 's  not  an argument.  ---   No i t 's  an argument.  I t 's 

an opin ion.   I t 's  not  –  i t 's  not  in the contract.   The –  the 

facsimi le of  the contract  says Monday to Fr iday.  

 Well  st rangely enough, that 's –  one of  the th ings I 'm 5 

point ing out to you is that we agree with you that th is contract 

does not correct ly ref lect the working hours that . . .   What we 

say what was agreed between the part ies was that  you would 

work. . .   Let 's take th is in stages.  On Mondays you would work.   

Do you agree wi th  that?  ---   H'm, perhaps I  can –  can I  help 10 

you?  The –  on the 18 t h  of  the 5 t h  '06 there was a meet ing, a 

one-on-one in which I  was to ld that I  would be working on a 

Saturday and would get  af ternoon of f  on a –  on a Tuesday.  

COURT:  Which day was that  again,  sorry?  The 18 t h . . .?  ---  

18 t h  –  18 t h  of  June I  th ink.  15 

 18 June '06?  ---   Sorry,  January,  February,  March, Apri l ,  

May.  Sorry May.                

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So what are you reading f rom there?  ---   

I 've just  got  a t imel ine that  I 've managed to d ist i l  f rom my –  

f rom my diary.  20 

 Yes.  Yes.   ---   On the 18 t h  of  the 5 t h  I  had a meet ing with 

Sedrick Tal jaard and Annel ien Bean in which I  was uni lateral ly 

to ld that  I  would be working on a Saturday.  

 And you say,  are you now cla iming that  at  that  meet ing  

you ra ised the quest ion of  your Jewish fa i th?  ---   H'm I  –  I  25 
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wish had objected with the knowledge that  I  have today.  I  –  

I 've had to operate under the assumpt ion that  most other 

South Af r ican Jews have operated under .   This country isn ' t  

Israel .   I f  I  was in Israel  th ings would be a l i t t le  b i t  c learer.  

 But you've actual ly f i led a document somewhere here in 5 

which you point  out  that  you actually do not have a problem 

with working on Saturdays.   ---   Right  i t 's . . . ,  r ight .  

You've said that  the way in which. . .   - --   I t 's  a status quo.  

I  grew up playing rugby on a Saturday.   No -one objected,  no-

one suggested that  I  wasn' t  a good Jew.  My father worked on 10 

a Saturday morning.  

Well . . .   - --   I 've grown up in the shadow of  the Half -

hol iday Act.   That 's the status quo, Shabbat  is  a Fr iday 

evening.   

Alr ight  so let 's proceed f rom that  premise.   I f  that  is so 15 

then you would not  have been part icular ly worr ied about 

whether or not  you had to work on a Saturday?  ---   No, the –  

the issue isn ' t  whether or not  I  worked on a  Saturday.   The 

issue is whether or not  I  objected to working on the Fr iday 

evening.  20 

Alr ight ,  so when we say that  the quest ion of  you working 

on a Saturday was not an issue that  was ever ra ised by you, 

that would be consistent with the views that  you hold that 

working on a Saturday is not  an issue for you?  ---   Precisely.  

Now the real i ty –  we can have a f ight  later about what 25 
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the contract  provided or should have or should not  have 

provided for,  but the real i ty was that the product ion cycle was 

that , to use the jargon, the product ion run for the People 's 

Post was Saturday to Monday and the newspaper would then  

come out on the Tuesday?  Do you agree with that?  ---   H'm, 5 

that 's not  ent i re ly. . .  

That 's what happened?  ---   No, i t 's  not  ent i re ly t rue.  

The product ion actual ly started on Thursday.  

 Well ,  I  don' t  want to spl i t  hairs.   What was done on a 

Thursday?  ---   News gathering.  10 

 Alr ight ,  wel l  some people use the word i t 's  in product ion.  

---   Right .  

 But the –  when did you start  edi t ing?  ---   H'm the. .. ,  th is 

is the problem, you see.  The Friday,  Fr iday deadl ine for –  for 

edi t ing was supposed to be 12:00 a.m. but the deadl ine was 15 

moved forward to four –  four o 'c lock.   So i t  just  became 

impossib le.  

 Right ,  I  understand what you're saying.   Now you didn' t  

have to work on Sundays, correct?  Sunday was a day of f?  ---   

H'm, not  –  not .   I  was actual ly brought in because the –  the –  20 

there were problems with some of  the –  the edi t ions.  There 

were four –  four edi t ions that  we were working on so I  worked 

on a –  on a Sunday f rom.. . ,  the same as the Saturday  actual ly.  

 Mr. . .   -- -   Saturdays were t i l l  three –  three o 'c lock in the 

af ternoon. 25 
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 Mr Lewis,  the picture here is th is was a new publ icat ion, 

correct?  ---   Right .  

 There were teething problems as tend to happen wi t h 

new publ icat ions,  correct?  ---   Right .  

 And in consequence of  that  people had to work i r regular 5 

hours to ensure that  the publ icat ion was on the street  by the 

date on which i t  was scheduled to appear.   ---   But not  in –  in 

terms of  the contract .   I t  –  i t  –  i t 's  sort  of  l ike a. . .  

 Forget about the contract .  ---   Ja. 

That 's what happened.   ---   Right .  10 

You can argue later i t 's  a breach of  your contract ,  I  don' t  

mind.  That 's what happened.  ---   Alr ight .  

You agree with me?  That 's what happened?  ---   Yes.  

Yes and for the two edit ions that  you worked on, both of  

them did not  fo l low some pre -planned regular set  of  hours 15 

because everybody was learning as they were going along.  -- -   

H'm, i t  was an except ional per iod.  

Exact ly.   -- -   Right .  

Exact ly.   And the other th ing you would know, that  in th is 

f ie ld of  journal ism, when you're working to deadl ines th ings 20 

don' t  a lways go according to some preordained plan.   ---   

Right .  

That means that  journal ists and subeditors who need to 

work on ensuring that  tomorrow's news paper comes out, 

somet imes do not and cannot leave at  set hours.   On a good 25 
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day maybe they can, but  on other days th ings have to be 

f lexib le because that 's in the nature of  the profession.   ---   I  

bel ieve,  I 've a lways bel ieved  i t 's  the sort  of  prerogat ive of  the 

journal ist  or worker concerned.  I t 's  not  something that can be 

expl ic i t ly demanded, the same way loyal ty is not  something 5 

that  you can demand f rom somebody.  

Yes but Mr Lewis,  i f ,  i f  you're busy working on the 

newspaper on tomorrow's edi t ion and the  World Trade Centre 

is b lown up, people do not say:   Five o 'c lock is  the t ime I 'm 

going home.  We're not  going to run th is story on tomorrow's 10 

f ront  page.   ---   Right ,  but  I 'm not. . .   Right  but  i t 's  not  a key,  

i t 's  not  a key industry.   There 's no legis lat i on in p lace.  This is 

not  –  i t 's  not  the army.   I t 's  –  i t 's  loyal ty to the,  h 'm, to the t i t le 

of  the person concerned.  I f  –  i f  the paper can' t  –  can't  

command loyal ty through just  pol ic ies and ethical 15 

management,  i t  has no, str ict ly no r ight  to expect wor kers to –  

to avai l  themselves of  their  pr ivate and f ree t ime.  

But i f  keeping to f ixed hours is so important  to you, why 

would you want to be a journal ist or a subeditor for that 

matter?  ---   H'm, I 've worked in many publ ic –  on many 20 

publ icat ions and product ion publ ic,  h 'm... ,  publ ishing 

departments.   My –  my t ime at  Sunrider Internat ional for 

instance was pret ty much t iptop working hours.   No problem 

with me being Jewish.   The same th ing at  Independent 

Newspapers Cape, not a problem.  There was a legi t imat e 25 
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contract .   There was no force, no duress,  no int imidat ion, no 

bul lying.  

But Mr Lewis,  you took Independent Newspapers to the 

CCMA.  ---   Right .  

Because you cla imed that  you were an employee of  5 

Independent Newspapers and they denied i t .   - --   H'm...   

(W itness chuckles).  

Correct?  ---   I 've got  a contract  but  that 's beside the 

point .  

Well ,  the. ..   - --   I t  –  I  was a de facto . . .   Right .  10 

The arbi t rator decided that  . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Right , 

the arbi t rator decided that  for the purposes of  the Act I 'm an 

independent contractor.  

Now how can you, how can you te l l  the Judge that  you 

didn' t  have –  there was no problem with your working hours at 15 

Independent Newspapers where you were in fact not an 

employee?  ---   H'm, I  beg your pardon.  

You were not an employee according to . . . ( intervent ion)  

---   I  beg, I  beg your pardon.  I 've got  a contract .   I  can show 

you a legi t imate contract  with the Independent Group.  20 

Well  le t  me show you what the arbi t rator found.  I t  

appears at  respondent 's bundle at  page 77.  ---   H'm, can I 

show you the –  my contract  in my appl icant 's bundle of  

documents? 

COURT:  Let 's just  start  wi th Mr Kahanovitz.   What page in 25 
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which document?      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  don' t  know.  There seems to be more than 

one version on his bundle.   On mine i t 's  page 77.  Mr. . .   My 

instruct ing at torney says i t 's  page 78.  

COURT:  Ja,  78 on mine.  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Okay.  ---   Sorry,  can I  refer you to pages 

83 to 84? 

COURT:  Just  wait .   We' l l  come to that  in a moment.   Let 's just 

–  le t me just record th is.  This is respondent 's bundle,  78  and 

yes Mr Lewis,  what d id you want to refer to?  ---   My contract 10 

with the Independent Group on page 83 and 84 of  my.. .  

 Of the same bundle?  ---   My bundle.  Appl icant 's bundle.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Mr Lewis,  what is the re levance of  the 

contract  at  page 83?  ---   H'm, you seem to be suggesting that 

there –  I  wasn' t  employed.  15 

 Well ,  i f  you look at that  contract ,  that and the case in the 

CCMA deal with completely d i f ferent  per iods in t ime.   The 

contract  at  page 3 is a f ixed term contract  as a subeditor f rom 

the Cape Times f rom January 1 2000 to February 29 2000.  I t 's 

a two-month f ixed term contract.   ---   I t  was an extended.. .  20 

 As a subeditor.   ---   Ja i t  was extended for a couple of  

months. 

 The.. .   - --   The –  the problem is –  is  I  was actual ly 

working at  the Independent Group without a. . . ,  a just  i t  was a 

strange si tuat ion where I  was provid ing copy to the daily pages 25 
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wi thout a contract .  

 But the issue that you took to the CCMA had nothing to 

do with subedit ing.   ---   Right  I  –  I  didn' t . . .   The problem is,  is 

that  the case was –  was –  at  the t ime when the Basic 

Condit ions of  Employment Act  had just  come out.   There 5 

wasn' t  any re levant case history.  

 Sorry,  the case you took to the CCMA had nothing to do 

with your contract  . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   And i t 's  absolute ly 

i rre levant to th is case.  

 Excuse me?  ---   I t 's  i r re levant.  10 

COURT:  Oh please, p lease let  Mr Kahanovitz f in ish his 

quest ion.   ---   Sorry.  

 And then answer.   Do not interrupt .   Part  of  the problem 

is that  we don' t  then record and I  ca n' t  recal l  what you've got  

to say.   Just .. .   Mr Kahanovitz,  ask that  quest ion again 15 

because I 've now lost  i t .   - --  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  You ra ised the re levance of  your 

employment h istory in Independent Newspapers,  correct?  You 

ra ised i t  because you said there was no problem there in 

re lat ion to your abi l i ty to pract ice your fa i th,  in re lat ion to 20 

working hours.   ---   Sorry?  Sorry yes,  there was no issue at –  

at  Independent.  

 Yes and I  then asked you whether you had indeed worked 

for Independent Newspapers  and I  ra ised the fact  that you had 

taken the case to the CCMA.  ---   Right .  25 
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 In which you had in essence cla imed that a f reelance 

journal ist  is an employee.   ---   No, I  th ink I  c la imed that  a de 

facto . . . ,  I  was a de facto  employee and that  in the absence of  

a contract  I  –  I  wasn' t  covered.  The –  there was a problem 

with –  wi th contract ing my labour.  5 

 And...   - --   I t  was an in  l imine  point so the –  they found 

that  I  was a –  that  I  –  essent ia l ly they turned me into a 

independent contractor.  

 And there was a  simi lar theme here you can see, i f  you 

look at  page 79.  You ta lk about, in the middle of  the page, the 10 

“o ld regime, a system which had been an obstacle.. . ”  

- --   Sorry,  which –  which. . . ,  of  the pleadings?  

 No the bundle, page 79.  ---   Your –  your bundle? 

 Respondent 's bundle:   The decis ion f rom the CCMA by 

Ceci l ia  Brummer.  The gist  was that  you argued that 15 

Independent Newspapers were perpetuat ing a system of  

explo i tat ion against . . .   - --   Indeed, r ight  indeed.  

 Yes.   Yes.  

COURT:  I  don' t  see that ,  sorry Mr Kahanovitz.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  In the middle of  the page, M'Lord.   I t  says:  20 

“ In addit ion to the above, which is common cause, Mr 

Lewis a lso submit ted the fo l lowing arguments for 

considerat ion.   During the old regime the system was an 

obstacle and journal i sts could not  f ight  bat t les against 

explo i tat ion to be ( indist inct  –  counsel speaking away25 
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“ f rom microphone) a l iving wage.”  

Et  cetera, et  cetera.   These were arguments put up,  M'Lord,  by 

Mr Lewis.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis.   ---   Right .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  As to why he should be classif ied as an 5 

employee.  M'Lord i t 's  –  I 'm happy to go on but i t  is  ten past 

four so.. .  

COURT:  Yes certa in ly.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  don' t  know.  I 'm in Your Lordship ' s hands 

and we're not ,  certa in ly not  going to f in ish today, so. . .  10 

COURT:  No, no certa in ly not .   No I  th ink th is was an 

appropriate t ime to adjourn.   Mr Lewis,  you remain under oath 

and we' l l  recommence at  10:00 tomorrow.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M'Lord.  

COURT ADJOURNS AT 16:07 UNTIL 5 NOVEMBER 2009  15 


